TOWN OF LADYSMITH

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE

COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH

WILL BE HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS AT CITY HALL ON
MONDAY, JUNE 6, 2016

Call to Order and Closed Meeting
5:00 p.m.
Regular Open Meeting
7:00 p.m.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER (5:00 P.M.)

1.

2.

CLOSED SESSION

In accordance with section 90(1) of the Community Charter, this section of the meeting will
be held In Camera to consider the following items:

e The acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land (s. 90(1)(e))
Provision of water service (s. 90(1)(k))

Appointment of officer (s. 90(1)(a))

Appointment of director to DL 2016 Holdings Corporation (s. 90(1)(a))
Provision of a municipal service (s. 90(1)(j))

RISE AND REPORT

REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M.)

3.
4.

AGENDA APPROVAL

MINUTES

4.1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held May 16, 2016.........ccccccecceeeeeeennnnnnnes 1-6
DELEGATIONS - None

PROCLAMATIONS

6.1. Mayor Stone has proclaimed June 8, 2016 as World Oceans Day, and June 8 to 14,

2016 as Rivers to Ocean Week in the Town of Ladysmith, to encourage citizens to

work together to contribute to sustainability and coastal conservation efforts at home
anNd arouNd the WOIIA. wuuuussssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnsssssssnsnnsnnnnnnnnnnnns 7
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7.

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

7.1.

7.2.

Development Permit Application — Oyster Cove Road (Lovely)
Strata Lot 14, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Strata Plan 2009 ......ccoceeeemeiiiiennnneennees 8-35

Staff Recommendation:

That Council issue Development Permit 3060-16-04 for Strata Lot 14, District Lot 56,
Oyster District, Strata Plan 2009 (Oyster Cove Road - Lovely) to establish geotechnical
conditions for the development of a single family residential dwelling,.

Development Variance Permit Application — 428 Davis Road (Millen)
Lot A, District Lot 52, Oyster District Plan EPP61167 (428 Davis Road).......cccceeeeue. 36-40

Staff Recommendation:

That Council direct staff to proceed with statutory notice for Development Variance
Permit application (3090-16-03) for Lot A, District Lot 52, Oyster District Plan
EPP61167 (428 Davis Road - Millen).

BYLAWS (OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN AND ZONING) — None

COMMITTEE REPORTS

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

Mayor A. Stone
Cowichan Valley Regional District; Advisory Design Panel; Ladysmith Chamber of
Commerce

Councillor R. Hutchins
Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission; Liquid Waste Management Committee;
Protective Services Committee; Stocking Lake Advisory Committee

Councillor C. Henderson

Community Health Advisory Committee/Interagency Group; Ladysmith Early Years
Partnership; Social Planning Cowichan - Affordable Housing Directorate; Youth
Advisory Committee

Councillor D. Paterson
Parks, Recreation and Culture Commission; Protective Services Committee; Festival
of Lights Committee

Councillor J. Friesenhan
Liquid Waste Management Committee; Parks, Recreation and Culture Commission

Councillor C. Fradin
Community Safety Advisory Commission; Advisory Planning Commission; Liquid
Waste Management Committee; Ladysmith Downtown Business Association
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9.7. Councillor S. Arnett
Municipal Services Committee; Vancouver Island Regional Library Board; Stocking
Lake Advisory Committee; Celebrations Committee
9.7.1 - Municipal Services Committee Recommendation (Meeting of May 23, 2016) .41

10. STAFF REPORTS
10.1. Royal Canadian Mounted Police 2017 to 2018 Municipal Policing Contract.... 42 - 67

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1. Direct staff to prepare the Approval in Principle Letter for 2017 to 2018
confirming a Ladysmith Royal Canadian Mounted Police Detachment member
strength of 7; and

2. Direct staff to include the calculations of the 2017 to 2018 costs for the Royal
Canadian Mounted Police in the 2017 to 2021 Financial Plan for budget planning
purposes.

10.2. Statement of Financial Information for the Year Ended
(D L=Y0T=Y a1 0 ST G 3 2 0 o 68-121

Staff Recommendation:
That Council approve the Statement of Financial Information for the Town of
Ladysmith for the Year Ended December 31, 2015.

10.3. Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan Updated Recommendations...... 122 -163
Please note that the full report is available at www.ladysmith.ca, and at City Hall. The
attached excerpt contains all recommendations contained in the full report.

Staff Recommendation:

That Council:

1. Approve the Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan as presented; and

2. Direct staff to prepare an implementation schedule for the recommendations
outlined in the Master Plan and proceed with implementing the
recommendations, in accordance with the Financial Plan.

10.4. Chlorine System Conversion Project .......cccoocmmiieeesscssccccmnnseesssssssceeessesessssnes 164 - 165

Staff Recommendation:
That Council receive the report from the Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture on
the Chlorine System Conversion Project for information.



http://www.ladysmith.ca/
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11. CORRESPONDENCE

11.1. Jonathan Zeiler, Ladysmith Festival of Lights
Proposed Animated Fountain StruCture ..........ccoomememenimmmeesssmsssesssssaans 166 - 167

Staff Recommendation:

That Council consider whether it wishes to pursue discussions with the Ladysmith
Festival of Lights about a proposed semi-permanent structure to be located in the
Symonds Street traffic circle.

11.2. Josie Louie, Stz’uminus First Nation
Request Funds to Support Stz’uminus Grads FUNAraiSer .....cceeeeeeiiieerrreeemmmennnnns 168-170

Staff Recommendation:

That Council consider making a donation to the Stz’uminus Secondary School
Graduating Class, with funds to come from the public relations budget (current
balance approximately $3,200).

11.3. Robert Lawson
Request to Amend Streets and TraffiC BylaW.....ueeee e s e s s s s nnnsnnnnnnens 171

Staff Recommendation:

That Council consider whether it wishes to direct staff to consider the request to
amend the Streets and Traffic Bylaw proposed by Robert Lawson in his
correspondence dated April 26, 2016.

12. NEw BUSINESS

12.1. Application for Funding from Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Grant Program -
Machine Shop Improvements

Council will recall that in June of 2015 staff were directed to submit an application
for grant funding up to a maximum of $500,000, to cover up to 50 per cent of the
costs to repair the Machine Shop, with the remaining funding sources to come from
taxation or other grant programs. The application was not successful. Western
Economic Diversification Canada (WD) is seeking new applications under a second
call for proposals for this program. Under the second call for proposals priority will
be given to:

e Recreational facilities;

e Projects that support a clean growth economy (i.e., energy efficiency

upgrades); and/or,
e Projects that support Indigenous Communities and Peoples.

Staff is seeking Council’s authorization to scale the project down to $250,000 and
re-submit the application to assist with funding improvements to the Machine Shop.
The deadline for submissions is June 22, 2016. This recommendation is supported
by the Machine Shop Users Advisory Group.
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Staff Recommendation:

That Council direct staff to apply to the Canada 150 Infrastructure Program for grant
funding of a maximum of $250,000, to cover up to 50 per cent of the costs to repair
the Machine Shop, with the remaining funding sources to come from taxation or
other grant programs.

12.2. Union of BC Municipalities 2016 Annual Convention ........ccccccererrrrrrrrrsesssssssssssssssssssseas 172

The annual convention of the Union of British Columbia Municipalities is taking place
in Victoria from September 26 to 30, 2016. The early registration deadline is in early
August (not yet determined).

Staff Recommendation:

That Council appoint Town of Ladysmith delegates to the 2016 annual convention of
the Union of British Columbia Municipalities in accordance with Town policy, which
states that four Councillors and the Mayor may attend the Union of British Columbia
Municipalities.

12.3. Grant-in-Aid for St. John the Evangelist Church

St. John the Evangelist Church applied for and received a 2016 Grant-in-Aid to
provide a monthly “open table” dinner for people living in poverty in the community.
Shortly after Council awarded a grant of $500, St. John’s Church closed its doors.
The open table program is now coordinated by St. Philip Anglican Church and
continues to be offered in Ladysmith.

Staff Recommendation:
That Council redirect the $500 Grant-in-Aid awarded to St. John the Evangelist
Church for 2016 to St. Philip Anglican Church to continue the Open Table Program.

13. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
13.1. Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905........cccceevrrrrrrnsnnnnans 174 - 180
This item was referred from the May 16, 2016 Council Meeting.
Staff Recommendation:

That Council give third reading to “Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905” under the Bylaws section of this agenda.

13.2. Nutsumaat Syaas Project Grant-in-Aid

At the May 16, 2016 Regular Meeting, Council approved a Grant-in-Aid of $5,000 to
the Nutsumaat Syaas Project at Ladysmith Secondary School and directed staff to
develop recommendations for how to achieve corresponding savings elsewhere in
the budget.
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Staff Recommendation:

That Council reallocate the $5,000 of funding set aside to hold Town Hall meetings in
2016 to fund the $5,000 Grant-in-Aid request for the Nutsumaat Syaas Project at
Ladysmith Secondary School.

14. ByLAaws

14.1. Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016,

0T R 0 181 - 187

The purpose of Bylaw 1905 is to clarify the roles of officers of the Town of Ladysmith
and to confirm delegation of Council authority as appropriate.

Staff Recommendation:
That Council give third reading to Bylaw 1905.

15. QUESTION PERIOD

A maximum of 15 minutes is allotted for questions.

Persons wishing to address Council during “Question Period” must be Town of
Ladysmith residents, non-resident property owners, or operators of a business.
Individuals must state their name and address for identification purposes.

Questions put forth must be on topics which are not normally dealt with by Town staff
as a matter of routine.

Questions must be brief and to the point.

Questions shall be addressed through the Chair and answers given likewise. Debates
with or by individual Council members or staff members are not allowed.

No commitments shall be made by the Chair in replying to a question. Matters which
may require action of the Council shall be referred to a future meeting of the Council.

ADJOURNMENT



TOWN OF LADYSMITH

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
, MONDAY, MAY 16, 2016
LADYSMITH CALL 7O ORDER 5:02 P.M. FOR CLOSED SESSION
CALL TO ORDER OF REGULAR OPEN MEETING 6:15 P.M.
CouNnciL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL

Counci. MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mayor Aaron Stone : Councillor Steve Arnett Councillor Cal Fradin
Councillor Joe Friesenhan Councillor Carol Henderson  Councillor Rob Hutchins
Councillor Duck Paterson

STAFF PRESENT:

Ruth Malli Felicity Adams Erin Anderson
John Manson Clayton Postings Joanna Winter
CaLL To ORDER Mayor Stone called this Meeting of Council to order at 6:15 p.m. in

order to retire immediately into Closed Session.

CLOSED MEETING
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-173 That Council retire into Closed Session in order to consider the
following items in accordance with section 90(1) of the Community
Charter:

¢ The disposition of Town-owned property (90(1)(e))
e The acquisition of property (90(1)(e))

e Legal advice (90(1)(i))

e Human resources matters (90(1)(c))

Motion carried.

ReEGULAR OPEN MEETING Mayor Stone called the Regular Open Meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.,
: - recognizing the traditional territory of the Stz'uminus First Nation,
acknowledging 5,500 years of history and stewardship and expressing
gratitude to be here.
AGENDA APPROVAL
Moved and seconded:
CS 2016-174 That Council approve the agenda for the Council meeting of May 16,
2016 as amended by the following addition:
12.3 Report on Elders’ Dinner
Motion carried.
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MINUTES
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-175 That Council approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council
held May 2, 2016.
Motion carried.

DELEGATIONS Gabriele Haas, GDH Solutions

Presentation of Draft Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan
Gabriele Haas presented an overview of the findings and
recommendations of the draft Parks, Recreation and. Culture Master
Plan. Council provided feedback with respect to the |mportance of
sport tourism, fenced dog park, the return on mvestment for the cost
of providing services, the feasibility of an overpass at. Hrgh Street and
the Trans Canada Highway, the role of the Parks Recreation and
Culture Commission and a proposed trail' connectrng Ladysmith with
Stz’'uminus First Nation lands. Council ‘expressed appreciation and
support for the Master Plan overall and thanked Ms. Haas and her
team for their excellent work : :

PROCLAMATIONS Mayor Stone proclaimed June 18 and 19 as Home Town Tourist
Weekend in the Town of Ladysmrth in order to encourage local
residents to become acqualnted with their community and become
supporters of local. - business and attractions, and become
ambassadors for visitors.to this area.

DEVELOPMENT
APPLICATIONS Bylaw 1911 - Ofﬂcral communlty Plan Amendments
Moved and seconded
CS 2016-176 That under the Bylaws section of the agenda, Council proceed with

grvrng first and second readings to Bylaw 1911 cited as “Official
Communrty Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw (No.47)
2016, No. 1911” and refer Bylaw 1911 to a future public hearing.
" Motion carried.

Official Community Plan Amendment/Rezoning Application - Holland
Creek Development (Glencar Consultants Inc.) - Zoning Bylaw
Amendments
(Lot 1, Block 192, District Lot 103, Oyster Dlstrlct Plan EPP44156)
ST Moved and seconded:

"CS~"2;916'177 That, Subject to Council giving first and second readings to Bylaw
1911, under the Bylaws section of tonight’s agenda, Council consider

giving first and second readings to “Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw

2014, No0.1860, Amendment Bylaw (No. 5) 2016, No. 1912”"; and

refer Bylaw 1912 to a future public hearing.

Motion carried.
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ByLaws '

(OFFICIAL COMMUNITY Town of Ladysmith Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003 No. 1488,

PLAN AND ZONING) Amendment Bylaw (No. 47), 2016, No. 1911

Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-178 That Council give first and second readings to Town of Ladysmith
Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488, Amendment Bylaw
(no. 47) 2016, No. 1911, and direct staff to schedule a Public Hearing.
Motion carried.

Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 1860, Amendment Bylaw
(No. 5) 2016, No. 1912
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-179 That Council give first and second readings to Town of Ladysmith
Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 1860, Amendment Bylaw (No. 5) 2016, No.
1912, and direct staff to schedule a public hearing.
Motion carried.

REPORTS Structure  Firefighters Competency and Training Playbook
(Recommendation from the Protective Services Committee)
Moved and seconded: e

CS 2016-180 That Council confirm the minimum training level competencies for the

Ladysmith Fire Department at “Interior Operations Level” for the Town
of Ladysmith, in accordance with the British Columbia Fire Service
“Structure Firefighters Competency and Training Playbook”.
Motion carried. .

Financial Institution Services Request for Proposals

MOTION REFERRED
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-181 That Council direct staff to proceed with a request for proposals for the
provision of financial institution services.

Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-182 That the issuing of a request for proposals for the provision of financial
institution services be referred to an upcoming meeting of Council.
Motion carried.

Request from the Royal Canadian Legion to Construct a Deck in the
Laneway Adjacent to 621 First Avenue
Moved and seconded:
CS 2016-183 That Council:
a) Authorize the Town to enter into an Encroachment Agreement with
the Royal Canadian Legion for the purpose of constructing a deck
in the laneway located on the north side of 621 First Avenue;

b) Advise the Royal Canadian Legion Branch #171 that it must obtain
a Development Permit and a Building Permit prior to proceeding
with constructing the deck; and,
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c) Advise the Royal Canadian Legion Branch #171 further that it
must consult with neighbouring businesses and residents and the
Ladysmith Downtown Business Association regarding this initiative
and that any concerns must be resolved prior to constructing the
deck.

Motion carried.

Installation of Garbage Cans in the Downtown Core

MOTION DEFEATED
Moved and seconded:
CS 2016-184 That Council direct staff to: ‘
1. Retain the 5 installed big garbage cans: on Flrst Avenue at the
following locations: .
Kitchener Street
French Street :
Symonds Street (bus stop. besnde 49th Parallel)
Symonds Street (east side bus stop)
Tim Hortons;

2. Consider black powder coatlng the basket for recyclable bottles.
Leave the skirting in.place and schedule regular washing of the lids
/ flap during the tourlst season;

3. Purchase elght new 100L garbage cans for Roberts to High Street
with a. top covering to keep out birds, to be located on First Avenue
at the following locations, subject to site review:

Roberts Street (north-west and south-east corners)
1,~,;,;Gatacre Street (north-east corner and at Old Town Bakery)

High Street (south-west corner and at Temperance Hotel)

- Buller Street (south-west corner)

Kitchener Street (at the Dunsmuir Square/Library bus stop); and

. Remove all other existing 75L garbage cans in the High Street to
Roberts Street section of First Avenue where they would be
replaced with new 100L units

Motion defeated

OPPOSED:
Mayor Stone and Councillors Arnett, Fradin, Friesenhan Henderson
and Paterson

Moved and seconded:
CS 2016-185 That Council direct staff to:
1. Proceed with the installation of garbage cans in the downtown core
as previously proposed;

2. Continue to investigate households and businesses in the
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downtown core who have not arranged for their own garbage pick-
up; and

3. Explore options to improve the aesthetics of the new garbage cans
Motion carried.

OPPOSED:
Councillor Hutchins

ByLaws Town of Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016,
No. 1905
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-186 That Council give first and second readings to Town of Ladysmith
Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905, and direct
staff to provide Council with a summary of changes contained in the
new bylaw compared with previous bylaws.

Motion carried.

CORRESPONDENCE Moira Dolen, Ladysmith Secondary School
Nutsumaat Syaas Project - Request for Funding
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-187 That Council provide a grant-in-aid in the amount of $5,000 to the
Nutsumaat Syaas Project at Ladysmith Secondary School and direct
staff to develop recommendations for how to achieve corresponding
savings elsewhere in the 2016 budget.

Motion carried.

NEw BUSINESS Appointment of Alternate Director to Cowichan Valley Regional District
Board of Directors
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-188 That Council appoint Councillor Carol Henderson as Alternate Director
to the Board of the Cowichan Valley Regional District until December
2016, effective June 1, 2016.

Motion carried.
Application for Grant Funding through BC Rural Dividend Program
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-189 That Council authorize the submission of an application to the BC
Rural Dividend Program for a feasibility study for the extension of
services to south Ladysmith and that council support this project
through its duration.

Motion carried.
Moved and seconded:

CS 2016-190 That the following item of new business be added to the agenda:
Mayor Stone’s attendance at the Federation of Canadian
Municipalities 2016 Annual Conference in Winnipeg.

Motion carried.
Town of Ladysmith Council Meeting Minutes: May 16, 2016 Page 5
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CS 2016-191

QUESTION PERIOD

CLOSED SESSION

CS 2016-192

RISE AND REPORT
ADJOURNMENT

CS 2016-193

CORRECT:

Federation of Canadian Municipalities 2016 Annual Conference
Moved and seconded

That Council authorize Mayor Stone to attend the 2016 Annual
Conference of the Federation of Canadian Municipalities from June 2
to 6 in Winnipeg, Manitoba, and direct staff to amend the 2016 to
2020 Financial Plan accordingly.

Motion carried.

-Elders’ Dinner

Councillor Arnett reported on an Elders’ Dinner he had attended in
Cowichan along with several members of Stz’uminus First Nation, and
thanked Council for the opportunity to attend this(m‘dVi‘n ,

event. L

Members of the public enquired about th«e;_'lfo‘\‘/‘vn’s carbon neutral
status, in camera discussions, measures for security in the event of
community interface fires, the Canada 150 Committee and the status
of grant funding for repairs to the Machine Shop.

Moved and seconded:
That this meeting of Council i
into Closed Session.
Motion carried.

g}e\sspat 9:05 p.m. and that Council retire

F. Adams, EAnderson, J. Manson and C. Postings and left the
meeting.

Council rose at 9:44 p.m. without report.

MOVed‘a‘nd seconded:
hat this meeting of Council adjourn at 9:45 p.m.

Motion carried.

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

PROCLAMATION

WORLD OCEANS DAY, & RIVERS TO OCEAN WEEK

WHEREAS: World Oceans Day (June 8") offers an invitation to remember the very
beginnings of life on earth, along with the many benefits we presently enjoy
and the ongoing critical role of oceans worldwide; and

WHEREAS: the Government of Canada proposed the concept of World Ocean Day in
1992 at the Earth Summit in Rio de Janeiro, and the day has been celebrated
internationally ever since, being officially declared in 2009 by the United
Nations as “World Oceans Day”; and

WHEREAS: this international celebration has grown from a ripple into a tidal wave of
awareness, connecting the importance of our oceans to the lands we live on—
leading to Rivers to Oceans Week (June 8-14") also being recognized by
Environment Canada as an opportunity ‘to better understand the role of
Canada’s watersheds, our connection to fresh-and salt-water environments,
and what we all can do to protect and keep waterways and marine
environments healthy and productive’; and

WHEREAS: our coastal regions and communities have benefitted greatly from a historic,
cultural and natural relationship with our lakes, creeks, streams and rivers;
and

WHEREAS: First Nations heritage, values and customs, culture and way of life have

traditionally drawn upon and given thanks for the abundance and wealth of
our oceans and waterways; and

WHEREAS: the waters of the Salish Sea between Vancouver Island and southern British
Columbia create a unique partnership, linking our coastal rivers with the
Pacific Ocean to provide a flourishing, clean, self-sustaining and bio-diverse
habitat that supports a wide variety of fish and marine life, and provides many
direct and indirect benefits that meet our long-term needs and that of
healthier coastal communities.

THEREFORE, I Aaron Stone, Mayor of the Town of Ladysmith, do hereby proclaim June 8”',
2016 as World Oceans Day and June 8 — 1 4”’, 2016 as Rivers to Ocean Week
in the town of Ladysmith, British Columbia. I encourage our citizens to work
together to contribute to sustainability and coastal conservation efforts at
home and around the world.

June 6. 2016




Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
s From: Felicity Adams, Director of Development Services
. { Date: May 30, 2016 |

I:WSMITH File No: 3060-16-04

RE:  DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION - Oyster Cove Road (Lovely)
Subject Property: Strata Lot 14, District Lot 56, Oyster District, Strata Plan 2009

RECOMMENDATION(S):

That Council issue Development Permit 3060-16-04 for Strata Lot 14, District Lot 56, Oyster
District, Strata Plan 2009 (Oyster Cove Road - Lovely) to establish geotechnical conditions
for the development of a single family residential dwelling;

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the Development Permit.

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this staff report is to
consider a Hazard Land Development
Permit application for Strata Lot 14 on
Oyster Cove Road.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND: ’Sé\

The applicant, Scott Lovely of Lovely %
Ventures Inc. has applied for a Hazard X
Lands Development Permit for the SUBJECT
construction of a single family residential PROPERTY

dwelling on Strata Lot 14 on Oyster Cove
Road. This property is within the
Development Permit Area 7 (DPA 7)
Hazard Lands on the Official Community
Plan, Map 2. The purpose of the Hazard
Lands Development Permit guidelines is
to protect development from hazardous
conditions.

Council approved Development Variance Permit 3090-16-01 on May 2, 2016 to allow an
attached garage to be located 0.6 metres from the front parcel line.

SCOPE OF WORK:

The subject property is in the ‘Oyster Cove Residential Zone (R-2-B)’ and falls within the
Hazard Lands Development Permit Area (DPA 7). The applicant, Scott Lovely (Lovely
Ventures Inc.), retained Simpson Geotechnical Ltd. to complete a detailed geotechnical
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evaluation of Strata Lot 14. The May 16, 2016 Report of Geotechnical Slope‘Stability
Assessment (SGL 15-023) is included with DP 3060-16-04.

The Report concludes that the subject property at Lot 14 Oyster Cove Road is geotechnically
safe for the intended use of a single family residence, provided that the report’s
geotechnical recommendations are implemented. The conclusions and recommendations
are made in accordance with DPA7 to prevent land slippage and sloughing; to safeguard
private property from potential damage, to minimize disruption to slope stability, and to
prohibit development from occurring in the area where slope instability hazards exist. The
geotechnical report indicates that the three existing retaining walls on the lower water
boundary of the property are in good condition, and there is no evidence of wave erosion or
beach scour at the base of the concrete seawall.

ALTERNATIVES:

While the issuance of a Development Permit is nota completely discretionary decision
of Council, Council may decide to not issue Development Permit 16-04 where the refusal is
based upon a determination that the development permit application does not meet the
Development Permit guidelines. If the Development Permit is refused then reasons must be
given. The determination by Council must be in good faith and it must be reasonable, not
arbitrary.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS;
A Development Permit is required prior to the issuance of a building permit on the subject
property.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
None.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
Development Permit application 3060-16-04 was referred to the Senior Building Inspector.
Geotechnical recommendations will be reviewed at time of Building Permit.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
Processing Development Permit applications is within available staff resources.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:
Not applicable.

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: :
Effective land use planning and community design are strategic Council directions.
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SUMMARY:
It is recommended to support Development Permit application 3060-16-04.

"
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Report Author: Margaret Paridaen, Planner
I concur with the recommendation:

Felicity Adams, Director of Development Services

Xl

RGTH Malli, City Manager

ATTACHMENT:
DP 3060-16-04
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

(Section 489 Local Government Act)

FILE NO: 3060-16-04

DATE: June 6, 2016

Name of Owner(s) of Land (Permittee): PAGANI INVESTMENTS LTD., INC.NO. BCO708451

Applicant: Scott Lovely (Lovely Ventures Inc.)

Subject Property (Civic Address): Oyster Cove Road

1.

This Development Permit is subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the
Town of Ladysmith applicable thereto, except as specifically varied by this Permit.

This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Town of Ladysmith
described below, and any and all buildings structures and other development
thereon:

Strata Lot 14

District Lot 56

Qyster District

Strata Plan 2009

Together with an Interest in the Common Property in Proportion to the Unit
Entitlement of the Strata Lot as Shown on Form 1

PID#016-664-451

(referred to as the “Land”)

This Permit has the effect of authorizing the issuance of a building permit for the
construction of a building or structure on the Land in accordance with the plans
and specifications attached to this Permit, and subject to all applicable laws
except as varied by this Permit;

Subject to the conditions, requirements and standards imposed and agreed to in
section 5 of this Permit.

This Permit does not have the effect of varying the use or density of the Land
specified in the Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014, No. 1860.

The Permittee, as a condition of the issuance of this Permit, agrees to follow the
recommendations in Schedule A: Report of Geotechnical Slope Stability
Assessment (Simpson Geotechnical Ltd - May 16, 2016).

The plans and specifications attached to this Permit are an integral part of this
Permit.

11




7. Notice of this Permit shall be filed in the Land Title Office at Victoria under s.503
of the Local Government Act, and upon such filing, the terms of this Permit
(3060-16-04) or any amendment hereto shall be binding upon all persons who
acquire an interest in the land affected by this Permit.

8. This Permit prevails over the provisions of the Bylaw in the event of conflict.

9. Despite issuance of this permit, construction may not start without a Building
Permit or other necessary permits.

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH
ONTHE _DAYOF __ 2016.

MAYOR ” CORPORATE OFFICER

OWNER

PLEASE PRINT NAME

OWNER

PLEASE PRINT NAME

12



Schedule A: Report of Geotechnical Slope Stability Assessment
(Simpson Geotechnical Ltd. - May 16, 2016)
DP 3060-16-04 Strata Lot 14 Oyster Cove Road (Lovely Ventures Inc.)

May 16, 2016
File: SGL15-023

Lovely Ventures Inc.
424 Battie Drive
Ladysmith, BC V9G 1v4

Re: Report of Geotechnical Slope Stability Assessment
Lot 14, Oyster Cove Road, Ladysmith, BC (Strata Lot 14, D.L. 56, Oyster
District, Plan 2009)

INTRODUCTION

As requested, Simpson Geotechnical Ltd. (SGL) has conducted a slope stability
assessment at the above captioned subject property. The subject property is a
sloping waterfront property on the southwestern shoreline of Oyster Harbour located
as shown on Figure 1. This report has been conducted in general accordance with
the APEGBC Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessment for Proposed
Residential Developments in BC. The completed Appendix D of the APEGBC
Guidelines is appended.

The Town of Ladysmith Official Community Plan Bylaw 2003, No. 1488 shows the
subject property to be located within Development Permit Area DPA7 Hazard Lands.
That development permit area requires a geotechnical report with recommendations to
protect the proposed development from potential slope instability.

We understand that the proposed development is a wood framed single family
residence that steps down the sloping site. It is proposed to have a garage on the
road side of the property that connects to the upper level of the residence, with two
levels below that step down with the existing grade of the site. The conceptual
residence location on the site is illustrated on Figures 1 and 2. We understand that
the proposed residence would be serviced by municipal water, sewer and storm drain.

377 Milton Street, Nanaimo, BC VIR 2K8
phone 250 753 7424 = SimpsonGeotech.com



Lovely Ventures Inc File: SGL16-026
May 16, 2016 Page 2

The purpose of this assessment was to provide geotechnical recommendations for the
residence on the sloping site within the framework of the current (2012) BC Building
Code for use in development permit and building permit applications to the Town of
Ladysmith.

REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The 2012 BC Building Code and the requires consideration of slope stability, including
seismic slope stability with a design ground motion (DGM) having a 2% in 50 year
probability of exceedance. The objective of the seismic design is to provide an
acceptable level of safety for building occupants as the building responds to the DGM,
although significant structural and non-structural damage to the building may occur'.
Wood framed residential construction can typically tolerate 15cm of slope
displacement without collapse®.

BACKGROUND

Surficial Geology
Surficial geology Map 27-1963 of the Nanaimo area published by the Geological
Survey of Canada was obtained. That map showed the site to be comprised of gravel

and sandy marine veneer typically less than 1.5m thick overlying ground moraine
glacial till of sand and silt with lenses of gravel.

Ground moraine glacial till is commonly used in the area for support of light to
moderate foundation loads and has a history of successfully standing at relatively
steep slope angles.

Documentation of the 1946 earthquake damage published by the Pacific Geoscience
Centre was searched for evidence of earthquake damage in the site vicinity during
that major (7.2 magnitude) earthquake event. No documentation of slope instability in
the site area was found, although “geysers of black mud” in the waters of Oyster Bay
was reported.

" NBC 2012 Structural Commentaries (Part 4, Division B), Canadian Commission of Building and Fire
Codes, National Research Council of Canada.

2 Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessments for Proposed Residential Development in British
Columbia, APEGBC, May 2010

ampean
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Lovely Ventures inc File: SGL16-026
May 16, 2016 Page 3

A site specific seismic hazard calculation for the site was obtained from Natural
Resources Canada. That seismic hazard calculation indicated a peak ground
acceleration of 0.481g for the 2% in 50 year probability of exceedance seismic event.
That seismic hazard calculation is appended.

The Province of BC Flood Hazard area Land Use Management Guidelines published
in May 2004 recommend a setback in the Strait of Georgia of 15 metres from the
natural boundary of the sea for buildings, which can be reduced to 7.5m where the
sea frontage is protected from erosion. A Flood Construction Level for buildings of
1.5m above the natural boundary of the sea is also recommended. The conceptual
building location as illustrated on Figures 1 and 2 meets those flood protection
recommendations.

The APEGBC Professional Practice Guidelines - Legislated Flood Assessments in a
Changing Climate in BC of June 2012 recommend planning for 1m of sea level rise in
the Strait of Georgia by the year 2100. The conceptual building location as illustrated
on Figures 1 and 2 is at least 8m above the current natural boundary and is
considered to meet those recommendations for future sea level rise.

SITE ASSESSH

Our site assessment was conducted on April 14, 2016. The assessment consisted of
a walkover of the property, slope and adjacent shoreline, obtaining a tape and
clinometer cross section of the subject property and immediate vicinity, and
excavation of four test pits on the subject property with a small tracked excavator.

The subject property was bounded by Oyster Cove Road to the west, Oyster Harbour
to the east and existing single family residential development to the north and south.
A common property walkway separated the subject property from the Oyster Harbour
Beach. '

The site was vacant, cleared and vegetated with grasses and light brush. There was
a narrow essentially level area immediately adjacent to Oyster Cove Road, from which
the property sloped down to the walkway and Oyster Harbour at variable slope that

15



Lovely Ventures Inc File: SGL16-026
May 16, 2016 Page 4

ranged from approximately 12 to 32 degrees from horizontal. No evidence of past
slope instability at the site or in the immediate vicinity of the site was observed.

There were two segmental concrete block retaining walls on the subject property
adjacent to the walkway, each approximately 1.5m in height. Below the walkway was
a cast-in-place concrete retaining wall approximately 1.8m in height that served as a
seawall and defined what we interpret as the natural boundary with Oyster Harbour.
Seaward of the walkway was a gently sloped gravel and cobble beach. No evidence
of wave erosion or beach scour at the base of the concrete seawall was evident.

Landward of Oyster Cove Road was an undeveloped gentle slope up to Highway 1.
The cross section of the ground surface through the site obtained by tape and
clinometer survey is shown on Figure 2 and the approximate cross section location is
illustrated on Figure 1.

A photolog of our site observations is appended.

The test pits encountered relatively consistent subsurface conditions that comprised
topsoil overlying variable sand, gravel silt and cobbles that contained construction
debris in TP-2, 3 and 4 that we interpret as random fill, overlying agglomerated, sand
gravel and silt of variable proportion in a very hard silt/clay matrix that we interpret as
basal glacial till to the maximum excavated depth of 3.1m. No groundwater seepage
into the test pits was encountered. Light sloughing of the test pit walls in the random
fill material occurred. Logs of the test pits are appended and the approximate test pit
locations are shown on Figure 1.

SLOPE STABILITY ASSESSMENT

The slope stability assessment was conducted using Slope/w limit states slope
stability software and the slope geometry obtained by tape and clinometers survey as
shown on Figure 2. The subsurface materials illustrated on that cross section and
used in the slope stability analysis are extrapolated from the test pits described above.
The cross sections illustrates that the underlying glacial till surface has a maximum
slope of approximately 31 degrees from horizontal, down towards the east.
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Lovely Ventures Inc File: SGL16-026
May 16, 2016 Page 5

The soil parameters were based on the fest pit observations, laboratory tests of
retained soil samples and published surficial geology data®. The stability assessment
was conducted for the static condition, and the 2% in 50 year probability seismic event
as required by the BC Building Code, with a peak horizontal ground acceleration of
0.481g.

The assessment was conducted to identify the theoretical failure surface with a factor
of safety of 1.5 for the static condition and 1.0 for the seismic condition. Those
theoretical failure surfaces illustrated that slope instability for the design conditions
would be primarily confined to the overlying sand and gravel material due to the
relatively high strength and moderate slope of the glacial till. The Slope/w output is
appended.

G i

Simpson Geotechnical Ltd. considers the subject property at Lot 14 Oyster Cove

Road, Ladysmith to be geotechnically safe for the intended use of a single family
residence provided that the following recommendations are implemented.

In general, the slope stability assessment indicated that the proposed building location
as shown on Figures 1 and 2 meets the slope stability considerations of the 2012 BC
Building Code, provided that the recommendations below are followed.

The recommendations presented in the following sections of this report are based on
the information available regarding the proposed development, the test holes, and our
experience with similar projects. Because the test holes represent a very small
statistical sampling of subsurface conditions, it is possible that conditions may be
encountered during construction that are substantially different from those indicated by
the test holes. In these instances adjustments to design and construction may be
necessary.

The materials encountered in the boreholes, test pits and observed in exposures on
the slope surface in the vicinity of the site are not considered to be susceptible to

% Glacial Till, An Inter-disciplinary Study, Royal Society of Canada in Co-operation with the National
Research Council of Canada, Special Publication No. 12, 1976

K
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seismic liquefaction due to the dense to very dense nature of the materials and the
low groundwater table. No further assessment of seismic liquefaction potential is
considered to be warranted at this time.

Site Preparation

The building area should be stripped and grubbed to expose an approved subgrade of
undisturbed, very dense or hard glacial till. The anticipated minimum stripping depth
to suitable subgrade at the test hole locations ranged from 0.6m (TP-1 and 3) to 2.9m
(TP-4).

Excavations

Excavation into the undisturbed glacial till should be minimized. Specific geotechnical
advice should be obtained for all excavation deeper than 1.2m into the till, if required.
Relatively deep excavation may be required in the proposed garage area at the Oyster
Cove Road side of the property in close proximity to the property line and buried
utilities. Sequenced “slot” excavation and engineered fill placement may be required
in order to maintain support of the existing utilities in that area.

Temporary construction slopes should be in accordance with the Occupational Health
and Safety Regulation. The contractor is solely responsible for protecting excavations
by shoring, sloping, benching or other means as required to maintain stability of the
excavation. SGL does not assume any responsibility for construction site safety or the
activities of the contractor.

Although not encountered in the test holes excavations may encounter groundwater
seepage, especially during wet weather. Contractors should be prepared to dewater
excavations as may be required. Groundwater seepage from excavation sideslopes
and dewatering from within excavations will reduce excavation stability. Conducting
the site excavation during dry weather would provide substantial benefit to excavation
stability minimize de-watering requirements.

Fourndations

The proposed residence may be founded on a spread and strip foundation system
bearing on approved, level, dense or hard undisturbed glacial till. Approved footing
subgrade in the garage area may be raised or leveled with engineered fill prepared in
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accordance with the recommendations provided below, if desired. The remainder of
the residence footings should be founded directly on approved very dense glacial till.

For Limit States Design the foundations should be designed based on an Ultimate
(unfactored) Limit State (ULS) bearing resistance of 300kPa. Geotechnical resistance
factors (®) of 0.5 for bearing and 0.8 for sliding are recommended.

A Serviceability Limit State (SLS) bearing resistance of 150kPa may be used, based
on limiting total settlement to less than 25mm and differential seftlement to less than
19mm between typical 4.5m column spacing, which is normally tolerable for framed
structures.

The site should be considered Site Class C in accordance with the 2012 BC Building
Code Section 4.1.8.4.

For working stress design the footings may be designed based on a maximum
allowable bearing pressure of 150kPa.

All footings should be located so that the smallest lateral clear distance between
footings will be at least equal to the difference in their bearing elevations. All footings
should be provided with a minimum 600mm of soil cover for confinement and frost
protection.

All foundation bearing surfaces should be reviewed by SGL prior to the placement of
engineered fill, footing formwork or concrete. Following approval of subgrade surfaces
concrete should be placed as quickly as possible to avoid disturbance of the
foundation subgrade.

We note that fine grained glacial till material may be easily disturbed by construction
traffic, especially when saturated. If soils in the areas of foundation support become
disturbed from construction traffic (including foot traffic), or softened by exposure and
water, the softened and disturbed material should be removed from footing areas and
the subgrade re-evaluated by SGL. prior to concrete placement.

Ganyoougindl Lvy
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Fioor Blabs on Grade
The undisturbed glacial till is considered suitable for support of grade supported floor

slabs. Floor slab on grade subgrade may be raised and leveled with engineered fill
prepared in accordance with the recommendations below, if desired.

Floor slabs on grade should be immediately underlain by a minimum 100mm
thickness of well graded nominal 19mm minus sand and gravel compacted to at least
95% of the Standard Proctor maximum dry density.

Engineerad Fili

Engineered fill may be used to raise and level approved subgrade for support of
building foundations and floor slabs. The intent of these recommendations is to
minimize the potential for settlement of the engineered fill and the resulting distress to
the structural elements supported by the fill.

None of the materials encountered in the test pits are considered suitable for re-use
as engineered fill.

Engineered fill should be imported, approved, inorganic, free draining, 75mm minus
sand and gravel placed and compacted in maximum 200mm thick loose lifts.
Engineered fill should extend laterally beyond the edges of the supported elements a
distance equal to the fill thickness, plus one metre. Above grade engineered fill slopes
should be no steeper than 2 horizontal : 1 vertical.

Engineered fill supporting foundations should be compacted to at least 100% of the
Standard Proctor maximum dry density. Engineered fill supporting floor slabs on
grade should be compacted to at least 95% of the Standard Proctor maximum dry
density. Engineered fill compaction should be verified by field density testing.

Lateral Earth Pressure

Foundation walls retaining less than 3m height of soil may be designed based on a
total lateral earth pressure equal to 5H? acting at a height of 1/3H above the base of
the wall. H is the total height of the retained soil against the wall in metres. Surcharge
loads would be additional, if applicable.

20
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That recommended design fateral earth pressure is based on wall backfill comprised
of silty gravelly sand, such as the site material overlying the glacial till in the test holes,
adequately drained to the base of the wall.

Collected rainwater from roof leaders, foundation drains or pavement areas runoff
should be led by closed pipe to the municipal storm drainage system, or to the beach
level. In-ground stormwater disposal systems should be avoided. In no case should
any collected water be discharged onto the slope.

A foundation drainage system in accordance with the BC Building Code and
constructed of rigid PVC pipe should be provided. In addition, all basement
foundation walls of the residence should be provided with a minimum 200mm width of
drainage gravel for the full height of the wall, covered with a low permeability soil at
the ground surface. Alternatively an approved geocomposite drainage mat such as
Armtec “Platon” installed for the full height of the below grade walls in accordance with
the manufacturers recommendations could be used.

Final site grading should direct surface runoff away from the foundation walls.

No underground irrigation systems, or other items with potential for discharge of large
volumes of water should be placed or installed on the subject property.

ADDITIONAL GEOTECHKIDAL SERVICES

The recommendations presented in this report are contingent on SGL observing
and/or monitoring:

e Building area subgrade preparation for footings and floor slabs on grade;
e Suitability of engineered fill materials;

¢ Placement and compaction of engineered fill; and

e Foundation drainage.

We trust that this report will assist you in the design and construction of the proposed
project. SGL appreciates the opportunity to provide our services on this project and

inTResnizar vy
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looks forward to working with you during the construction phase and on future
projects. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

This report was prepared for the exclusive use of Lovely Ventures Inc. and their
appointed agents for the proposed residential development described herein. Any use
or reliance made on this report by an unauthorized third party is the responsibility of
that third party. Contractors should make their own assessment of the property for the

purposes of bidding on and performing work on the site. :

The recommendations in this report are based upon the data obtained from widely
spaced test holes. The nature and extent of variations between these test holes may
not become evident until construction. If significant variation in subsurface conditions
from those described in this report is encountered SGL should be contacted to review
those conditions and update our recommendations as may be required.

This report has been prepared in accordance with standard geotechnical engineering
practice. No other warranty is provided, either expressed or implied.

Yours truly, 15%5%%
Simpson Geotechnicww*@gg
g anmw %

Attachments: Figure 1 — Site Plan
Figure 2 — Cross Section
Photo log
Test Hole Logs (4 pages)
Slope/w output (2 pages)
Seismic Hazard Calculation
APEGBC Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessment for Proposed
Residential Developments in BC Appendix D
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APPENDIX D: LANDSLIDE ASSESSMENT ASSURANCE
STATEMENT

Note: This Statement is to be read and completed in conjunction with the "APEGBC Guidelines for Legislated Landslide
Assessments for Proposed Residential Development in British Columbia”, March 2006/Revised September 2008 (*APEGBC
Guidelines”) and the “2006 BC Building Code (BCBC 2006)" and is to be provided for /andslide assessments (not floods or flood
controls) for the purposes of the Land Title Act, Community Charter or the Local Government Act. Italicized words are defined in the
APEGBC Guidelines.

To: The Approving Authority Date: M&y 16,2016
'GLHN o€ =y siTH
FoTBow 220, Lagysmm, BC. VG 1A

Jurisdiction and address

With reference to (check one):

Land Title Act (Section 86) — Subdivision Approval

Local Government Act (Sections 919.1 and 920) — Development Permit

Community Charter (Section 56) — Building Permit

Local Government Act (Section 910) — Flood Plain Bylaw Variance

Local Government Act (Section 910) — Flood Plain Bylaw Exemption

British Columbia Building Code 2006 sentences 4.1.8.16 (8) and 9.4 4.4.(2) (Refer to BC Building
and Safety Policy Branch Information Bulletin B10-01 issued January 18, 2010)

Ooogooono

For the Property:
S\l DL SE ORI DsrRicT , PlAn 2009 (\‘Ll OysTer. GuEQﬂb)

Legal description and civic address of the Property

The undersigned hereby gives assurance that he/she is a Qualified Professional and is a Professional
Engineer or Professional Geoscientist,

I have signed, sealed and dated, and thereby certified, the attached /andslide assessment report on the
Property in accordance with the APEGBC Guidelines. That report must be read in conjunction with this
Statement. In preparing that report | have:

Check to the left of applicable items

___\_/_1. Collected and reviewed appropriate background information

_v2. Reviewed the proposed residential development on the Property

_3.  Conducted field work on and, if required, beyond the Property

_Z4. Reported on the results of the field work on and, if required, beyond the Property

5. Considered any changed conditions on and, if required, beyond the Property
6. For alandslide hazard analysis or landslide risk analysis | have:
_vB.1 reviewed and characterized, if appropriate, any /andslide that may affect the Property
_v’6.2 estimated the landslide hazard

6.3 identified existing and anticipated future elements at risk on and, if required, beyond the
Property

_\(_ 6.4 estimated the potential consequences to those elements at risk
7. Where the Approving Authonity has adopted a level of landslide safety | have:

7.1 compared the level of landslide safety adopted by the Approving Authority with the findings of
my investigation

—_7.2 made a finding on the level of landslide safety on the Property based on the comparison

7.3 made recommendations to reduce /andslide hazards and/or landslide risks

8.  Where the Approving Authority has not adopted a level of landslide safety | have:

Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessments
APEGBC @ Revised May 2010 for Proposed Residential Development in British Columbia
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v8.1 described the method of /andslide hazard analysis or landslide risk analysis used

_-_4.2 referred to an appropriate and identified provincial, national or international guideline for lfeve/
of landslide safety

~_/§.3 compared this guideline with the findings of my investigation
8.4 made a finding on the /eve/ of landslide safety on the Property based on the comparison
_»8.5 made recommendations to reduce landslide hazards and/or landslide risks

___9. Reported on the requirements for future inspections of the Property and recommended who should
conduct those inspections.

Based on my comparison between

Check one

O the findings from the investigation and the adopted /evel of landslide safety (item 7.2 above)

w~  the appropriate and identified provincial, national or international guideline for /level of
landslide safety (item 8.4 above)

| hereby give my assurance that, based on the conditions" contained in the attached /andslide
assessment report,

Check one
ad for subdivision approval, as required by the Land Title Act (Section 86), “that the land may be
used safely for the use intended”

Check one
O with one or more recommended registered covenants.
O without any registered covenant.

E/ for a development permit, as required by the Local Government Act (Sections 919.1 and
920), my report will “assist the local government in detemining what conditions or
requirements under [Section 920] subsection (7.1) it will impose in the permit”.

<

for a building permit, as required by the Community Charter (Section 56), “the land may be
used safely for the use intended”

Check one
O with one or more recommended registered covenants.
O without any registered covenant.

m| for flood plain bylaw variance, as required by the “Flood Hazard Area Land Use Management
Guidelines” associated with the Local Government Act (Section 910), “the development may
occur safely”.

O for flood plain bylaw exemption, as required by the Local Government Act (Section 910), “the
land may be used safely for the use intended”.

S mrsorl G Es TR HNI A LT

P ‘Em\—\-ﬁv:bgma\mcu?&uo 6 2ot
Name tp#t Date
L
-
Signature

T'\When seismic slope stability assessments are involved, leve/ of Jandslide safety is considered to be a “life safety” criteria as

described in the National Building Code of Canada (NBCC 2005), Commentary on Design for Seismic Effects in the User's Guide,

Structural Commentaries, Part 4 of Division B. This states:
“The primary objective of seismic design is to provide an acceptable level of safety for building occupants and the general public as the
building responds o strong ground motion; in other words, to minimize loss of life. This implies that, although there will likely be
extensive structural and non-structural damage, during the DGM (design ground motion), there is a reasonable degree of confidence
that the building will not collapse nor will its attachments break off and fall on people near the building. This performance level is
termed ‘extensive damage’ because, although the structure may be heavily damaged and may have lost a substantial amount of its
initial strength and stiffness, it retains some margin of resistance against collapse”.

Guidelines for Legislated Landslide Assessments
APEGBC ® Revised May 2010 for Proposed Residential Development in British Columbia
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malili, City Manager
7 ;| From: Felicity Adams, Director of Development Services
| |d J , Date: May 31, 2016
apvenarn e No: 3090-16-03

RE:  DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT APPLICATION - (Millen)
Subject Property: Lot A, District Lot 52, Oyster District Plan EPP61167( 428 Davis Rd.)

RECOMMENDATION(S):

That Council direct staff to proceed with statutory notice for Development Variance Permit
application (3090-16-03) for Lot A, District Lot 52, Oyster District Plan EPP61167 (428
Davis Road - Millen).

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this staff report is to obtain
Council direction regarding statutory
notification for a development variance
permit application.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

The applicants, Ronald and Margaret
Millen, are requesting a variance for the
setbacks of a proposed new dwelling on the
panhandle lot at 428 Davis Road. Currently
the property is vacant. The proposed site
plan for the property is attached to this staff
report.

Pursuant to Bylaw 1667 staff require
Council's approval to proceed with the
statutory notice to the neighbours.

SCOPE OF WORK:

The current stage of this application is to
seek Council's direction to proceed with the
statutory notice for the development variance permit application. The subject property is
zoned ' Single Dwelling Residential (R-1)'.

The applicants have recently purchased the newly subdivided panhandle lot and are
preparing their building design to construct a single family residential dwelling on the
property. The dwelling is proposed to be 9.14m by 18.28m - 167.07 m2 (30ft by 60ft -
1800f2) in size with a 3m (10ft) wide attached deck with a total deck area of 335m2 (1100
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f2). The house is proposed to be located 4.5m (15ft) from the front property line and the
attached deck is proposed to be situated 1.5m (5ft) from the front property line. The
proposed principal building meets all setback requirements of the Zoning Bylaw except for
the proposed variance requests from the front property line.

Proposed Variances - 428 Davis Road

10.2(5)(e) Required Proposed Proposed Variance
Principal
Building
House - Front Parcel
Line Setback

Deck- Front Parcel 6.0 metres 1.5 metres 4.5 metres
Line Setback

6.0 metres 4.5 metres 1.5 metres

The applicants provide a rationale for the variance request in their letter attached.

ALTERNATIVES:
To not support Development Variance Permit application 3090-16-03.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS;
None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS;

The Local Government Act enables Council to vary zoning regulations, except use and
density regulations, through the issuance of a development variance permit. This is a
discretionary decision of Council. Public notification is required.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
It is recommended that Council direct staff to proceed with the statutory notice for
Development Variance Permit application 3090-16-03.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
Development Variance Permit application 3090-16-03 has been referred to the Building
Inspector for review.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
Processing Development Variance Permit applications is within available staff resources.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:
Not applicable.

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
Effective land use planning and community design are strategic Council directions.

. 2015
Cowichan GREENEST

EMPLOYERS

BC CLIMATE ACTION

COMMUNITY 2034 37




SUMMARY:

It is recommended that Council direct staff to proceed with the statutory notice for
Development Variance Permit application 3090-16-03.
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Report Author: Margaret Paridaen, Planner

| concur with the recommendation:

3 w\,?g;;éﬂ

Felicity Adams, Director of Development Services

X MeQ0.

RuttrMalli, City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Site Plan - 428 Davis Road (Millen)
Ronald Millen letter (May 14, 2016)
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Schedule A: Site Plan — 428 Davis Road (Millen)
DVP 3090-16-03
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Town of Ladysmith
COMMITTEE REPORT

SIITIE - Mayor and Council
’ .[ From: Councillor Steve Arnett
I - Chair, Municipal Services Committee
LADYSMITH  pate: May 23, 2016
File No:

Re:  MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

At its May 16, 2016 meeting, the Municipal Services Committee recommended that Council:

Continue to review alternative governance structures for watershed management and the
safe provision of clean water, and continue to participate as a member of the Ladysmith and
Area Watersheds Coalition.
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

s & To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
s N From: Erin Anderson, Director of Financial Services
o b Am’ Date: May 19, 2016
Lapysmrra  File No: 7400-01

Re:  RCMP 2017-2018 Municipal Contract Policing

RECOMMENDATION{(S):
It is recommended that Council:
a) Direct staff to prepare the Approval in Principle Letter for 2017/2018
confirming an RCMP member strength of 7.
b) Direct staff to include the calculations of the 2017/18 costs for the RCMP in
the 2017-2021 Financial Plan for budget planning purposes.

PURPOSE;
The purpose of this report is to review the number of members required at the
Ladysmith Detachment of the RCMP.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

Each year, the Town receives from the RCMP E-Division a request to confirm the
number of RCMP members required to be funded by the Town. Currently, the Town
funds 7 of the 13 members in the detachment; the remaining members are funded
by the Province.

The letter received recently proposes a member strength of 8. The Town is required
to confirm with the RCMP how many members it will fund. Staff discussed the needs
of the detachment with the Ladysmith Detachment Commander Staff Sergeant
Brissard. It was confirmed that the number of members from the municipality should
remain at 7 for 2017 with the possibility of increasing to 8 members in 4-5 years. An
additional Provincially funded member would be required at this time as well.

Policing, including the cost of the detachment, is the largest single area in the Town’s
budget. Like many municipalities, the Town contracts with the RCMP to provide
policing services. Municipalities with a population under 5,000 do not pay for
policing. Communities, like the Town of Ladysmith with a population between 5,000
and 15,000, pay 70% of the RCMP member costs and communities over 15,000 pay
90% of the RCMP policing cost.

There is a separate rental agreement for the RCMP to use the building on Sixth
Avenue as their detachment. These costs, together with the RCMP member costs
and staffing costs, make up the Police Tax.
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Council may recall that an additional police service support staff position was funded
starting July of 2016. This position will assume most of the RCMP members’
administrative duties.

SCOPE OF WORK:
With direction, Finance will include the costs in the 2017-2021 Financial Plan for
budget planning purposes.

ALTERNATIVES:

There are very few alternatives to the RCMP. The Town could create its own Police
Force though there is a substantial cost to this and it would result in a loss of
revenue from the use of the detachment.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:;

Included in the first year of the 2016-2020 Financial Plan is the RCMP cost of
$168,620 per member plus overtime. The Town of Ladysmith is responsible for
funding 70% of this cost.

In today’s dollars, the cost to increase the RCMP member strength from 7 members
to 8 members for the Town of Ladysmith portion is $130k with overtime.

2017/18 rate per member 7 members 8 members Difference
(not including
overtime)
Contract Cost (100%) 1,222,060 1,396,640 174,580
TOL portion (70%) 855,442 977,648 122,206

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
There are no legal implications.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
None.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
None. ‘

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
None.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:
None.

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
Providing RCMP service aligns with the Strategy F - Safe & Healthy Community.

SUMMARY:
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The RCMP requires the Town to approve in principle the number of RCMP members
required in the Federal fiscal year of 2017/18. Both Town staff and the detachment

recommend remaining at 7 municipally funded members. The 2017/18 RCMP rate

is $174,580 plus overtime per member, with the Town responsible to fund 70% of
this cost.

| concur with the recommendation.

AMadl -

Ruth Mamy Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Letter from RCMP: Municipal Contract Multi-year Plan 2017 /18.
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Royal Gendarmerie Security Classification/Designation
Canadian royale Classification/désignation securitaire

Mounted du

Police Canada Unclassified
May 11, 2016 P RECEIVED
Ruth Malli 1 MAY 16 20 Your File Votre
City Manager TOWN _OF LADYSMITH
Town of Ladysmith ST e
410 Esplanade, P.O. Box 220 OurFile  Notre
Ladysmith, BC V9G 1A2 E753-40
Dear Ms. Malli:

Re: Municipal Contract Policing Multi-Year Plan — (2017/18)

In keeping with the Municipal Police Service Agreement of 2012, we are communicating
with our Municipal Partners to establish projections of our human and financial resource
needs in 2017/18.

We are asking that you meet with your Detachment Commander to discuss the police service
needs of the community and the related human and financial resource requirements.

For this 5-year plan cycle, we have included the items listed in the attached schedule
prepared by the Local Government Contract Management Committee (see Appendix A). It
should be noted that this document will be updated as changes become known and is current
as of May 9, 2016.

Many of these initiatives have been discussed at different meetings/forums such as the
Government Finance Officers Association of BC’s (GFOABC) annual budget meetings,
Lower Mainland CAO/PPC meetings, and local presentations before Mayor and Council.
The next GFOABC meeting is on June 2, 2016 in Whistler, BC. We hope to see you or your
representative there. If you have questions, or would like a custom presentation on your 5-
year municipal plan, please contact Autumn Longley, Financial Manager Municipal
Contracts at 778-290-4804.

Attached for your information are:
a. Our five year budget for yout RCMP Municipal Policing costs. This is a detailed
listing of actual costs for fiscal year 2014/15, pre-final costs for 2015/16, a revised
estimate for the current year (2016/17) and budget estimates for 2017 — 2022
inclusive (see Schedules 1, 2 and 3 for 2017/18).

b. Five year budget for Division Administration Costs (Schedule 4);
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c.  2015/16 Per Capita Analysis (Schedule 5) and
d. Sample Response Letter (Schedule 6)

e. Sample Request Letter to Decrease/Increase Authorized Strength (Schedule 7)

A number of items remain under discussion between the Provincial and Federal
Governments, including: :

‘Division Administration costs associated to Green Timbers: While this item is currently still
under discussion, the provisional amount of $900 per member has been included in the
Division Administration estimate.

Severance Liquidation: As of April 1, 2012, severance no longer accumulates for members
who resign or retire, but will continue to accrue for lay-off, death,'and,_disability. For
budgeting purposes, an estimated amount of $1,023 per full time equivalent (FTE) has been
included. The payment amount and schedule for severance liquidation is currently being
discussed between the Provincial and Federal Governments.

In addmon the RCMP’s most recent salary agreement exp1red on December 31, 2014. An
estimated pay increase of 2.5% per year has been included in the five year budget for RCMP
members. An estimated pay increase of 0.5% per year has been included for federal public
servants. These increases are reflected from 2016/17 onwards. The included pay raise
amounts are not based on final negotiations and do not necessarily represent amounts
requested or proposed. Once new agreements are reached, retroactive payments may be made
in the 2016/17 fiscal year. ‘A provision for retroactive pay has not been included, but this
does not preclude a municipality from setting aside contingencies for this possibility.
(Sample per-member impact scenarios are provided in Appendix B.)

We would also like to inform you that, going forward, installation and equipment costs for
Closed Circuit Video Equipment (CCVE) will be eligible for cost-sharing through the

- municipal police services agreement, as per the most recent Cost Allocation Matrix discussed
by the Contract Management Committee. '

We recognize that your calendar year Budget Cycles are not synchronized with the
Government of Canada’s fiscal year, however, we are requesting that you provide
information earlier than the Municipal Budget Cycle normally requires. This is to ensure that
the Federal Treasury Board can secure their share of the Municipal Contract costs within the
federal budget cycle time lines.

Please submit a “Letter of Approval in Principle” by June 10, 2016. The letter should
address all increases for fiscal year 2017/18, including:

- Proposed establishment increase in regular and/or civilian members;

- Estimated Municipal Policing Budget at 100% costs;

- If applicable, estimates for Integrated Units, RTIC and
Accommodation at 100% costs; and
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- If applicable, approval in principle and basis of payments for any
equipment costing $150,000 or more per itemn.

We would like to emphasize that this “Letter of Approval in Principle” (“AIP”) is for
planning purposes only to address the Federal Government’s Annual Reference Level
Update (ARLU) process. It is important to include any anticipated increases in establishment
at the AIP stage, as this impacts both recruitment and financial planning at the federal
government level. However, the AIP is not a final commitment on your part for the
additional personnel or for the increased financial budget indicated. A copy of a sample
response is provided for your reference (Schedule 6).

To affect an actual change in authorized strength, a letter to the provincial minister requesting
an amendment to Annex A of the Agreement(s) to increase/decrease strength is required
(Sample provided as Schedule 7).

First Reply Letter:

Approval in Principle Letter for 2017/18 Due: June 10, 2016

A) Please address the letter to:
Mr. Clayton Pecknold
Assistant Deputy Minister and Director of Police Services i
Ministry of Justice
P.O. Box 9285 Stn Prov Govt. f
Victoria, BC V8W 9J7

B) Please forward a copy to the RCMP addressed to:
Mr. Max Xiao ,
Regional Director of Finance, RCMP “E” Division
Mailstop #908, 14200 Green Timbers Way
Surrey, BC Canada V3T 6P3

Second Reply Letter:

Final Confirmation Letter for 2017/18 Due: May 1, 2017
By May 1, 2017, pleasé forward a second letter to confirm the 2017/18 budget to:
A) Assistant Deputy Minister and Director of Police Services

B) Regional Director of Finance, RCMP “E” Division

Due on: Authorized Strength Change

Third Reply Letter: Annex A Letter

When you decide to change human resources (authorized strength changes) to your ‘ ;
detachment strength, please be advised that a third letter is required that outlines your
request. (Sample provided as Schedule 7).
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A) Please address the letter to:
The Honourable Mike Morris
Solicitor General & Minister of Public Safety
P.O. Box 9010 Stn Prov Gov’t.
Victoria, BC V8W 9L5

B) Please forward a copy of the letter to:
a) Regional Director of Finance, RCMP “E” Division
b) C/Supt. Ray Bernoties, District Commander, Island District

If you have any questioné regarding your municipal budget or your contractual obligations,
please contact Autumn Longley, Financial Manager Municipal Contracts at 778-290-4804.

Yours truly,

A

Robert H. Jorssen

Executive Director,

Corporate Management & Comptrollership Branch
Royal Canadian Mounted Police, Pacific Region
Mailstop # 906, 14200 Green Timbers Way
Surrey, BC Canada V3T 6P3

Cc: Mayor Aaron Stone, Town of Ladysmith
C/Supt. Ray Bernoties, District Commander, Island District
NCO i/c Ladysmith Detachment ‘
Max Xiao, Regional Director of Finance, RCMP “E” Division

. 11 RCMP E Division
. Canada Finance Section, Mailstop #908
» 14200 Green Timbers Way

Surrey, BC Canada V3T 6P3

48



'
|
|

i
)
4
i
i
"
3
i
i
i

v
i

vio | efied

'solel pajepdn aAey
Jlim ue|d Jesh-G IXON "SOA

*S910UBIO10

01 anp sBujaes alelsusb pjnoys ‘uni Buoj ay} ut ‘pue “uswpy "AQ YSnodyl saoines asayy Joy BuiAed usaq aaey siauped
JoeIUOD Se [ewjuiw AIBA Jo 019z aq pjnoys swelboid g jfe Jo 1oedw] "g /210 Ul ASLINS Ui pazZifeljusd SEM SUOROWOId
OON ‘uonippe uj “(ed1M8g uohesusdwo) s1equaly Joj 314/09°Z68$ ‘Pue sdo 6,100y 104 31 4/17°2eeS$) pebieyd
Buieq a1om 51500 [BNIVR G1/FL0Z "3 "¥1/C1L0Z PUB £L/ZLOZ 10} SIENIOY Z1/| |02 U0 paseq “UiWpY “AlQ Ulylim pabireyo
us3aq 8AeY sioued j0e1U0D {(BMEHO) DHN JWOY Ul £1/2102 Ui pazijenuad a2ia19s uonjesuadwo) saquispy

pue sdo Bununosay "eepiwwo) Buipuels (Juawueue) 10 B 9ouUBUld) D04 S,OND Aq Bulonuow ButobuQ :snieig

(soeid i
Apealje) JNOH ulyum
|euIalU} - S8OIAISS
pelep]|osuo) 18Ul0,

"sejel
palepdn aaey m ued Jesk
G IXoN 'ILd Jed 122$ 'seA

'suleauod Auaalep aoinIes |eJauab Joy suojnjosal se |jlom se ABojopoylaw uoijeso)ie }soa pue spoob jo

18)SBq SB YIns S|ielap 109 Jo Aousiedsuel) ansind 0] anupuod ‘pue Sansst [o0] ale Aaalsp 99IAI9S puR 100 OSS 1Byl
paaibesip s d owil Siy} B umowyun s| 10819 Inq *sejousioiye ybnoiy) sbujaes ajelousb pinoys 3 ‘uni Buo| sy uj "(DSS
0] paligjsuel] Jels "Al] ,3.) DSS O} UIWPY Al WOl palys ale s}sod awos "Buoje e BuiAed usaq aaey saediounw
Jeym jenbe pjnoys - sjejual “dinbs ‘wwod “wwod Jeindwod ‘siebed ‘sauoydaje) sepnjou; “Bulobup sniels

(main Jualayip Jo ase s1/d
'dINDH/OSd Ag Xurely DIND
ui wayf pepniouay, pue
anss| jeoo] B palapisuod)
EPBURY) S9OIAIOG pateys,

"papnjou; Jeaf
Jad 9,6°0 Jo e1BWNST "SOA

] "P3|1Ias SI JOBIJUOD MBU B} UsSUMm
ajewy]ss Joedw) 1500 apiaoiad [Im uolsial 3., dNOY "S3Sd ARy ey saijedioiunw o} Joedwi feUOPPY "UIWPY "AIg
uo sajjedionu dWOH jo Ajolew o) 1oedw| *#10g ‘0g sunr paiidxa Juswaaibe aA)309}j09 ‘siaquiaw uoun (epeue)

JO @ouUellY S9IAI9S 21IqNd) DVSd 848 S3Sd jo Allofely "sjuswaaibe aAloajj0d mau Jo Juswaines Bujpusd sniejg

{(uiwpy “AlQ ybnouyy
Ajurew joedun) asearou)

Aed s38d dWOH

v xipuaddy

sanifediolunyy UoISIAID 3. dWDH 0} sBulAeg/s1s09 Buldljod dINDY [B1USiod 1o 1s1]

‘papnjou Jeah "pojNes ale sojel MBU By} usym sjewunss 1oedwi 1500 apiaold jim uoisiAg 3. dINDY "ostel Aed asealouy|
Jad 9,6z jo ajewlisg 'saA| JeaA sad <46z Jo Jopjoyaoeld JAIN ¥10E ‘LE 08 paJidxe abeyoed uonesuadwo) "uoisiosp g1, ‘pad Buipusd snieig Aed ,s1equsiN dIADY
(sBop soijod
. . ‘ yim seirediouniy
solel pajepdn aaey uejd JEB A-G jedioluniA By} Ul pepnjou; 81em 81/ L0Z 10} E€2'G2$ pue wes . o1 oraeondde
i uejd Jesh-g XN 'S9A|/1/910g 10} wea) tad 88/ /2$ JO 918l paloslold ‘eaniwwoy Bupuels sweiboid jeuonen s,0ND Aq malasl Jepu sniels Veee'ses zmownmc_p___m._._.
) 2018 g wmmn_. aolj0d
‘sayes parepdn aAey "314/81+°1L$ = 314/005'e$ SS9 (858 _,w_+ 095°e$) 314/816'%$ = 1800 _Scofm._oc_ pelewnisy "ue|d JesA-S ) Bupinioay/Burures |
; [edidiunyy oyl ut papnjou; a1am Bumnioal Joj 31 4/85¢" 1$ pue Buiutel | 16peD 10} 314/095'c$ JO serel pejslord g1/2102 JL4/B8LY LS
I ueld Jedh-G IXaN ‘SOA . ; ; ; 19pED,
S1/77102 O} €1/2 10 Wolj siedh g Jo§ 314/005'E$ Sem 1S0D JUBHNSUOD [BUISIXa AQ MaIAsY pejoall(] Japun snieig
. (saousbe Gunedoned
) ‘314/0017°6% swee | peayelbou] QN o}
'soA| = anow 0} Joud 314/009°5$ SSO] I14/000°G L$ = }S00 [eluBWBIOU) ‘BIBWNSD JINDY 1SOJE| 84} UO paseq siaquii] Usaln 314/001°'6$ ajgeoydde Auo) Aouednoop
uj @oeds BuiAdnooo 10} swea ] pajeiBaju) g uo Joedw) - BPRUBYD PUB 90UIADI4 Uaam]aq uopenobau BuiobuQ :snelg Swes | pajesbo
A - siequi] usaln
so "314/009% = @Aow ol Jopd 31 4/00€$ $$8] J.L4/006$ S! 1S00 [BIUBLIBIOUI ‘BTRIINSS JNOY 1S81B) U} 314/009$ “uilpy
Al uo paseg "saledioiunw diDY (1B 03 10edw; "ulLpY "AlQ - BPBUBY PUB 80UlACld Usamiaq suopenobsu Bulobug :snieig "N - slaquul] ulalb)
‘PJEMUO |2 JESA WOL) PapNjouod si jnoAed souBIoASS JOYe JogquaN
l1ad sBuiaes 31 "xoidde piaiA |Im Ing sIA 0Z ISL 2u} Ul JuBoLUBIS Jou 218 SBUIAES 90URISASS ‘SPIOM JBUJ0 U| "siesh
soA 02 1oA0 paziUowe aq UED 1S00 [e]0] 1By} uoidwinsse oyl Jopun ‘(1s0o JeaA Jad [eouolsiy ueys sss| Ajybls) 314/e20°1$ 08 uopEpINbIT GoUBINCS
si Buyjiq Joj pue gAA Ul 21nbly 15838l 8Yl "Z1L0Z ‘0F YoJely 01 dn Juswapius pajejnwnooe 10} suojdo InoAed paisyjo
alom sioquIB|y ‘sjudwWwalnal pue suoljeubisal Arejunjon 10} Aed 9oUBIOASS S)BINWNOIE 0} JUSWSRNUS Siaqualyl JWOY
1O UojeUIWIB] ‘ZL0Z ‘1€ UYDIBN "JJO - DAlBIIUI [eIapa4 "BpEURY PUE 92UIAOI] Usamiaq suoljenobau Buiobu() snieig
- . - - - - B o\uocr@ ,
o ©way sed-HO-I 14
. SMEJS/SOION " - .7 [ 1od sBuinespson
N R Rt 1 1TSS ST
P 177 perewnsy
9102 ‘6 Ay 18 SY

49



¥ jo g abed

15808104 BY} Ul

*Z1/9102 Ul 1S00 Juswaoe|ds) swil-euo e ag [jim
a1y -Aoueloadxe sy Jabuo| Ajueoyubis B Yim (L6780 1$ 191S[0Y JUsLInO 8u} uey} anisuadxa ssa] Apybils) 66°601$ Sl
18150 MaU B J0 1500 *(£1/91.02 Ul suoieoyenb suueely [enuue Jay: Bupnp esn s)i ul Bulufes) aAl80a [iM SISQUIS pue

umwﬁmﬁ u_moﬁ_succ,wa SOUO plo 8y} 9e|dal M JBIS|OY MaU U} Jey} PapIosp S| 'SUOISIAI] ,H, PUE ,3, Ul SISqWaN L2} Ylim pajojid sem Jeisjoy /901 Woe(day 2IsIOH,
L1/81 U Nl moue “Jom AI9A SeM J31S|0Y aU} Uaym Jals|oy Jus.Lnd ay} woyj joisid uLespis wig sy} Buiaowal ul AYndlyip eyl inoqe
sjuredwos f8jes 3 yyeay [euoednoo snosslwinu Jo Ynsal B sy "gL0g ‘| 1dy "ye uonejusweidll psuueld SNIBIS
. */1/9102 10 pus Ag suodeam mau Jo Inojjol jo uopsjdwod mmc_n._mo,
0N pajedx "uounwiLe pue suodesm 1oy S1S09 sonpal fim ‘uru Buoj auy) ut pue Buures ‘suoelado Ul $3[OUSIOILS Ul )Nsa) aulgJes 1H3 maN pue a1
[IM Y2Iym JNO3OE(g 008" 01 sauiqied 1Y Bunisixe Builisauod - uojez|uispopy swieslid "diNT Ul #oud)sixa Ul fpeaje aie| Y3 MBU/O0S‘ LS 10 apisino (1 Y3) wes)
, swiea} aWy [N} ApUalLINg "Saulqies [HT meu - abels uopejuawadw) imalrey 1H3 feucten - eels uojelnsuo) :snjelg asuodsay Aouabiswig,
‘oN ‘wal ojqesepIQ uondo, Ue S ‘U aAeY L,Uop 1BY] 850y} 10} {s8|diyeA 89ijod Jo s|apow swos wun siep
Ul papnjou; Apeadly “uone|sibaj [eouiroid sjqedydde yim Aiduiod o} sedinap (8e1) Spuel) yjoolenid jo uonejielsu| sneis un/oeY$ 99110d Ul yjoolenid
*7102 "Tepy 0 pua sy} Aq peuswadwi &g 0] UOIEYNSU0D/USWSSasSe Xa|dwod
a1ou asinbal YoM suoiepuswicoal Buluiewsl Z| 8yl jo AUBl 910z 1dy Ag psiuswaldil oq [IiM O} Sjiym ‘Ssuigied - (uorotion)
*oN 1o nojjo1 sypadxe "B ‘pejuswaldw usaq Apesi(e gf {(a1edls)y PUE SUCHEDUNWWOD Auswdinb3/ABojouyos | ‘Buures) ods } s _\w_m
‘uoisiaiedng) seale A9y § OJul UMOP USX0IG SUOHEPUSLLLLIODa) vg sey Wodal 8yl ‘G102 Aenuep ul pasesjal sem (¥102 Hodsy [ISNIBN«
* aunr) gN UCIOUOK Ul SJuaAe bkl 8y JO JUSLISSaSSE [BolilI0 pue aAjsusyaldwo) uojeuswaldwi Gujobup snels
: '$3Sd Yum sapifediouniy 8soyl jo84e AJUo [iim i ‘pue [ewuiw 8q; Bogﬂmﬁ_ﬁm%m
[ semfedioiunut 0} 1oedw| "sapeibumop Ma) e Jo AllqIssod ‘sepeifidn sy} Jo sajep "Jye 8y} uo peseq uswAed onal yiim uomsod HIID JUBLILOElSd

‘ON

18A9| | Aq pepeiBdn aq jum suomsod jsow Jey} peloadxe s, *(Buioijod 10U 0} patejsl suoiysod ggzg~ ‘[essps} Ajsow)
epeue) ssoloe pameiral Bujeq ase suonisod Loddns “ulpe dWOH 008 INoqy ‘msinel Jo uoyezijeuy Buipusd snjeis

3Sd PaIoAUEB/00L VS

10 || 9sByd - (HdSV)
M8[ABY Uollisod
Uoddng "ujwpy,

*sajel pajepdn aney
fim ued Jesh-g IXaN "SeA

. *S1aSH0 “UIUPY ‘Al SY} SA S1S09 asay) Buuojuow eq [iim ssiiwwo) Bulpuels 0904 S.OND

‘590IAI9S PAEpIOSUOL JOY10 S SWBS ‘[BWIUIL aq PInoys ing pamais) Buiaq si Joedw [ejoueut 'siesA ¢ 1ano seseyd
€ Ul 1220 M uonejuswsaidw) ‘JuswdojeAasq aAlINoax] pue Juswsbeuep ‘pezifeloads ‘leuonepunod ojul padnoib

SJey] WNJNOLLING UOWILOD UQ Paseq ‘edlAas JliGnd J0 [ooyas epeue) ybnosy) seolates Buiuies| ,saafojdwe Jeiapay
JO UOQEPIIOSUOSD & 102 “AON 43 (€ IS0 U} pusl) PIEMUMOP B MOYS OS[e Yoiym ‘Alpaloedsal ge'gy$ PUe 08'2Y$ -e1e
s1eak g Bummo)|o} sy} oy sael pejoafold pue G L/ L0Z 10} T 14/66°2F$ pableyo alem sisuped JoBNUCD "BPEUBD YI[BSH
£q pauoddns mou aie s3Sd B SIequBi dINDHY [IB ‘PaNUNU0DSIP SEM ‘Sadlalag 8auelsissy eafojdu ‘welbold asnoy
-ul SJINDY £102 + Mdy 1 (2 "seiouaiole o} enp sBuiaes Jenusiod moys sieak g Bumoljoy ey 1oy Ajpaoedsel 0L 26V$
pue 62°895$ J0 selel pejoslold S 1/ L0Z 10} 314/87"019$ o sl maN 'S[enjov g|/| L0g U0 PSSeq "UIWPY "Aig Uiulim
paBieys useq aaeY ‘10z 1des Ul gN ‘IYoIWEN Ul pazijenuasd asiales uonesusdwo) s3sd (1 “BuloBup snieig

(e0e|d Ui ApeSlie)
[BWaIXa - SAJIAIRS
peleplosuog J8Ul0,

0

=

"JoUOOS 3IoM 0} ulnial 0] pajoedxe ale

siequisiy Se ‘pensiyoe aq Aoy [Im 10 uo sBujaes [euollippe ‘pauueid se [njssasans 8q dNd PINOYS 8.l "ulpy "Ald
JUBLIND By} UIUIM SISOJ [ElUsWaLoU] AU 18S1J0 PiRoySs pazifeal seloualalie ay) ‘jom sy "welboid mau eyl uoddns o1 Joro
po|lo) 8q UeD saoInosal sy pue weiboid (DMLH) SI01BUIPICOD 3O OF uiniay Bunsixe ay) jeyl easiieq s1d ‘Bujuue)d
3110M-0]-UINIS) pue Jusilabeurw 8seo ‘uohuaniaiul Aes Buipnpul seojoeld jseq uo pling [ eyl yoeoidde paziuiepow
poob e si (dNa) welboid 1B Aujigesiq ayi 1ey) pesibe Asyy B{IYM "SHjeusq/sIsoo Jo Bupoyuow HuobuQ sniels

(Z1/9102
uopeuswolduwy
pauue|d) JWOY uluim
jeussiul - S80IAIBS
payeplosuo) 18Yi0.

50



¥ jo g abey

ON

*MIHT SiUl Jo ouB)SIp 8AlDSYe pasealoui au) 0} anp Alajes olignd

PUE 12010 asealoul ||IM pue SAIDSYe alow 8q fiim ‘Paul) Ajfejusplooe Buieq punol [eyls| e Jo senliqissod Jo uoieuiule
apnoul syyduaq JayiQ ‘siaquiaiy AIng [eJeusan) 1o} 910Z JO [1e} 8Y} Ul 8duawiwo fjim 1osfold jopd v *sjuswaiinbas Bujuresy
auljwealls M MIY3T swes ay) Buisn siequay fing fessusy pue JsplO diaNd ‘14T BuiABH “suomunwiwe [eyls|-ssa)
abuei Buoj pue sbuel LoYs 10} SMOJE Il SB pM|HT WWob B 0} BuiAoW ale J19pIQ 2ignd Pue 14T "s1eoujo soljod aulj Juolj
Ag suodeam [eyis}-ssa| Jo asn sy} Suipuawiwooal (ouoso] Uy Aunbuj joonqooe| "B8) seuinbui/smeias. 0] asuodsal uj
“uawyoejap auo Je siospuadns o) U3 enssi o} 1eloid jo)id B peouswiwoo *AIQ 3, ¥ 102 U] "ebe)s Alojelojdxg :snyelg

0G2$ 01 005$
ondo + uodeam/000°‘cS
"xoldde

(reyse| sse] ‘W)
{MmI43) uodeep 1oedw)
abuey papuapq,

‘oN

"gjqelieAe 194 jou suonoafoid

1500 "910¢ "B Jo pua Aq pajoadxe Jwbjy Jojuss 0} suolepuswiwodal - uondo 862101s PNojy UO Yosesesal o) Senujuod
J90150 04U} JOIUD JINDOH 8llum ‘5102 090 Ul palejdwod sem Apnis Ajljigises) uo Hodal jeuld "SUOHEPUSLLILIODS.
papincid (DdO) Jauoissiwwo) ASBALI 8U) 1O 99140 ‘PUB ‘G102 100 Ut (0ayq) epeue) juswdojpasg pue yoreasey
sousje( Ag paysignd usaq sey podal jeuly sajeolpul xuiel Bupioell DN Isere] syl "ebes Atoyeroidxe jeuld :snielg

(Amg)
0OpIA Wopp Apog

-ebelols 1o} pnojo sy Buisn Alqissod Buiiojdxg -ebelols
BIED 10} 1500 ,UOINJOS 801140 XoB(, JO BAISN|OX® ‘BjolyaA adljod Jod SAD] JO 1500 pajewsa S| 00g y$ "ol JO Uonuslal
pue Jwbw UM palelooSSE SIS00 pappe a[qIssod Juawssassy 1oedwy AoeAld Buipusd pue ‘yoressas panupuoy) sneig

Hun/,00e‘v$

{(snon)
walsAg 08pIA Jeo uj

[
P
s
i
i
3
v
3
|
h
|
1
s

‘ON

‘pausiral

g osje ||Im s)ijeusq UOIIEOOISH *("010 ‘palou Sle S101J8 USUM SUOJIOR 8A)08.1100 8XE) 0] Ajljiqe ‘1orjuod o jujod ajbuls)
salousiolye o} enp “uiupy "Ald ybnoay) sbuiaes ajelausb pinoys uris 6uoj syy uj Ing 4uiod sy e fesneu 1so) “ssalbosd
89518A0 0] Paysi|qe)se S| 98j)ILIWIO,) 9OUBUISADY) “JedA | 10} GL0g ‘| "09( "}je asnoy-ui weiboid sy} s1a)siuiwpe
dWOHY "siyeusq uoljesolas uo abejs Aiojesoldxq Lspiaoid aojuies Aued pig aoejdal 0} yoroldde ui-aseyd snielg

UOIJeWIOSUR |
uoleooley

‘oN

aw sy

1 umouun s1 ‘Aue yi “yorduly 3507 “Buurebieq 8A08|00 0} JUBL sy} S1equsyy Mmolfe 0) sebleys Juswajdw 0} (9102 Aey
Ol uoisuaxe ue pajueib sem dINDH/EpeUR AlajeS dlidnd) JesA auo usAlb sem 1,A00) "pa- “JRUONIISUOOUN pawesap
(10v suonejay Inoge 901AISS aljlaNnd) YH1Sd WOl SIaquisiy dINOY JO UoISNoxe 8U) §10Z ‘9L "UBl Uo Pajnt LnaD
awaldng - epeUE) JO [BI8USL) ASUIONY "A (OUBIUQ JO UONHBIDOSSY 831104 Palunop) OVdIN "ebels Alojelojdxg :smeis

suoleloy
anoqen dNOH.«

“ON

*Aemispun

[8A8] [BUOISIAIP BU] JB SBUBYIXNE pue Si1auled JoBJUCO UM UOLRYNSUOD JWOH "91/6 “Jely uo suoising o) ebeyoed
uol1B}NSUOS 8y} Ul pepnjoul usaq aAry yoiym sabiueys pasodoid dojsasp 01 9102 "o Ul 1oW Siojeulplood Aejxne
dNOY "Pamainal aq |jim suondo wiopun ‘pue pajepdn aq jim Aoijod [euonep ‘padojersp aq jjm piepuels Bulues |
[euoleN pue ‘18D AJeljixny JO sjoJ sy Buiquosap Xue ANALOY JBUOHEBN 91/52 "Uer "Jo panuiuodsip eq |im Buuren
uohezueliwe} swiealy) pue sbuofe-epu 1038 Aq psaoidde pue 0} pajussald alam suollepuswwodal §1.0g ‘1| "Uer ug
G102 ‘21 "AON uo Bupssuw is| Yyum paysiiqelsse sem dnoif Buppopa "Bujurely uonezueliwe; swieel) ‘semailoe uonuasid
awipo pasiuadns-uou Joj suondo wuojun 3sp Alelxny pauuoyun jo uoisiuadns :ul sebueyo Aoijod pesodo.d o) pa)

weibolid 15D Areyixny,

#102 “190 Ul BMENQ Ul JOqUISW S804 UB|PBUBS paulioyun ‘paweun ue jo Buooys ey "ebels uoyeynsuos sniejs

LT T (W SIYY e uMoWjun ede ..ﬂumnEEm.cu.w,moEv..wm._:EE:w—w_u‘.m,.oEuo.E;:_. sbuires/sisog jenusiod

"Sa\

‘welbold Bujuies] 1epen
oy} jo yed se Buluies) sjyy ‘|put 01 suoissnasip Bujobuo ‘uonenpe.b Jaye jodaq 1e Buluren auigied aARa! |jm Siepeo
jle ‘doou) pajenpesB G0z ‘9 ANy syl yum Bulouswiwo)) Bujuiel) “[oxe Yorl S|0IUSA PUE X00] ‘ased Bulhiied "joul 1s00

auiqIe] "(POABILUOE %0€) 9102 ‘L€ YoJBN AQ Siaquiall aul| U0l %Gg ulel} 0} suoisiNg |1y “Bunopuow 1oy xuew OWD

ay} o] Yoeq 1ybBnoiq aq o} way siY) pajsanbai s 4 "SUOHEPUSLLLLIODRI [IBNOBI JO JNSol e Se INojjo eppodxy smeis

809'v$

Bujures |
B seuigied joNed,

L smeig/sajoN

%00LD-

| ,,..” . ) - ‘..,E,m“: 1od mo,m._.m_.. : .,
L Yjeluewaiaug. :

porewnsy -

Cweyl

51




‘peulLLslep 194 JON "ON

‘pezieuy 1A jou Jusunesi] "oN

oy obed

ey snojaaid syi of pappe sajepdn 1o SWal MaU = , ;30N

: ‘g1 *ped Aq pauiuuielep st (BL/2L0Z PIW~ 19s A[oAHEIUS)) S1Bp POWSSP B} usyM 'SINY Joj SeJ LoUNquiuoo

uoisued sJekojdwa sy} sassesse-al pue Jajsuel) uoisuad ay) Jo Jordull BU) SSUIUIEXS [SUBJ UOISUSH dU Jilun pauleladse aq 10ULED SBUIAES JoU ‘1oABMOH "S3Sd 10} Sl uolnquiuod
uotsued sJeko(dwus Jemoj ey} o} enp sepyediolunus *Alq 3, 40} [10} Ul (%001 ®) MS2ES Io sBuies [epueiod [fews e Bumous si JWOH Afuaung paujwielep 29 o} 19A sey Iep pawisep

- 19y uonenuueIadng 82ILIBS 21]qnd ©Y) O} }9Y uolhienuueladng difIH Sy} Wol) adlaes s|qeuoisued Jo siejsuel} 8] SMOJ[E J9Y SiU} JO LE UOISIA] "STSd S' pawsap ad ([iM oYM SND
syepoulwooge o} Jep.o Ut ueyd uojsued eapuss oljgnd eyl o) sebueyo pasodaid pepnioul SIYL 102 "08Q Ul JusssY [eAOH PaAIRoRI Z "ON 19V FLOZ UBld Uofoy dlwouod3 uyl ‘uonippe U|

) I *$1S00°

asoy; Buieooje jo Aem (feneu 1s00) ejqeldaooe Ue punoj pue JWOH/epeUE) Alvjes dlignd tim Ajinyssasons paxlom aAey sdeu (sefjedidIunjy/seuonua 1 /s90uinold) SW/L/d “%00t ® (S3Sd
pewesap) SWD peLeAuos oyl 1o} Buiked ag jjm SND @AY Jeul sepifediolunu ‘uoippe u| "uciie|nofed ay) ul (WD+WH) slequisy ueliAD pue sejnfey Bujpnjoul SISE( BNULIO) B UO pajesojje
ANusLINg ale "uIWRY *AiQ S Yons sisog Joanpu| swos *(s35d) sesfoidws edinieg didnd o} (SWD) siequisjy UB(|IAID) dINOH ©A0UI 0} 18S S{ Zp-0 JiIE :SISqUISTY UEIIALD JO UOISIaAUOD

:sBuineg/s1500 [Enuajod 1910

‘pajoayel
sBuines BuiobuQ “ssA

' (e102
‘| ~idy Yo sedsuemolly

-gouemojfe Buiyiofpo doeydn WVSOWOID

uo Jeah Jad NGQ" 1§ “xoidde anes o} enunuod senfedoiuniy “AIQ 3. ‘NBL S 10 sbunes {euiBuo ay} uey} Jemo] Aybiis s ) ufeld paoe|dal - aouemo|y
sBuiaes ay) ybnoyy usas ‘sbujaes eleleuab o} anURUOD (| YOO “UeAsmoH “g1/S1L0g W sjuewed oujes siesh ¢ jo ofed| ieskuad (W90’ LE) Buyioln feuoneledo)
ay] pasnea sjusWsellius YOO JO M3IAAI B - YOO U0 arepdn, "jIIbjoeq aaee| [elualed/feuialew (| O ‘{BARI] ‘JuawsInoold :sBuineg YOO (1oL VOO uo elepdn,

YliM SMBIASH SSIoULRIIT
pUE (dvHQ) ueld
uofoy uoyonpey Hoyag

wolj sbuneg [eleusn)

10 BunesuiBua-ay 1B 199]4 Buuweens a4y SWBK LN YOO 2Je XUl siyl ul papnour Apesife jou aie el
syoep uoyeuasald s, JIWOY Ul umoys sBuires JeyiQ "seeljwwog Bulpuels OIND snolea Aq Buuojiuotw BuioBuQ :sneis

Guiies

’ OO 01 8LOZ ‘| [Mdy "}ie 8lel meu B pPusLILoda) uogenuueiedng

"S9 | ‘UCHEN[EA [EIIENIOE LI0 PASE( ‘PUB SUBAUODSI [[iM [SUBJ UOJSUSd Ul 1ey) pajoadxs s Ueld 1eak-g s fjfediojuniy yoes ul o m%m%m_,\_,_ou
pepnjoul ‘pUE 81/2 10 01 91/5 102 SAH € 10} sBujulee ajqeuoisuad Jo %/°2Z J0 etel 8y Je Jas Ajuaung BulobuQ :sniels mLm» ol a.Emr
. ‘uoin|os WO 0 Uolos|as pue uolssiuans g1 ‘d4d
‘ued 1oeloud Jo JusidofeAsp SBAOAU} Ydlym Aenuspun si || 8seyd ndul elep 10} Jjels [euclippe alinbal Aew welsAs .
mau sty ‘sieuped jusuieolojus mej pue Buprod yum Buueys "ojul Joy spuewap Buie(eoss 0} Buipuodsal sejel(ioey sjepdn aremyos
*ON ‘saseo Jofew Buibeuew ul suopesado ealjod poddns Jsliaq 0] uoiN|os paziesiuso e buuats|dw Aq suopesado . Wby esen Jofey
soziprepue]s ‘swaisAg ‘Wb SpJodaY dINOY 8Ulo UM Saoealul pue WalsAg (Bunoday pue eouspiAg) Hg3 JUsLInd - lemauay NOWS.

au) seoejdal welsAs siyL *(] eseyd) suonn(os ejqissod salepleA puUe sejjjuspt yalym sisheue suoido yydep-ui ‘Hodel
juswaiinbai uolnjos ‘,sdeb, pue ,spaau, Jo sisAfeue ue pajeidwiod wes) 1afoid WOWS S 102 UdIBN Ul ‘BuiobuQ :snjels

52



Pav Raise Impact Scenarios Table

Appendix B

Examples are estimates based on the top rate of pay for a Constable ($84,000)

Estimated pay One time Retro One time Increment Annual Increment
raise 16/17 16/17 17/18 & ongoing
2.5% $3,881 n/a n/a
3.0% $4,661 $1,202 $1,783
3.5% $5,443 . 52,412 $3,587

As shown in the above table, annual increments for a 2.5% pay increase are included in the
forecasts, while the one-time retro payment is not.

Please Note: There would also be retro pay related to overtime, which is not included in the
table. Some allowances (e.g., Service Pay, Senior Constable Allowance) may change in the new
pay package and there could be related retro payments, which are not included in the table.

Tlustration:

A pay raise of 3.0% (vs 2.5% budget) would increase budget needs by approximately $1,200 per
member in 2016/17 in addition to a retro component of $4,660 per member, which would not be
in the 16/17 budget. There would also be an additional $1,800 per member in future years.
Furthermore, overtime and allowances could add another 15% to the above estimates. For a
city with 100 RMs, the impact of a 3% pay raise in 16/17 may require a contingency of
$6,739 per RM or $673,900.

Calculations Details

The following estimates are based on the assumption of a 2.5% pay raise per year and are
provided for planning purposes.

Retro pay from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015:
2.5% * 84,000 = $2,100 per member

Pension impact = $2,100 * 22.70% = $477

Total = $2,100 + $477 = $2,577 per member

Retro pay from January 1, 2016 to March 31, 2016
$86,100 * 2.5% * .25 = $538 for January 2016 raise
$525 per member for January 2015 raise

Pension impact = ($538 + $525) * 22.70% = $241
Total = $525 + $538 + $241 = $1,304

Total Retro Pay Estimate
Total = $2,577 + $1,304 = $3,881 per member estimated retro in 2016/17
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Schedule 1

Ladysmith

Municipal ‘

Cost
Contract Strength - FTE . 8.00
Per Capita 100% $ 174,580
Contract Cost ( Excludes OT) $ 1,396,640
Overtime (includes Reservists) | $ 89,020
Total Policing Cost 100% Per Capita & Overtime $ 1,485,660
Total Policing Cost 70% Per Capité & Overtime ' $ 1,039,962
Accommodation Estifnate @ 100% » $ -
Public Service Support Staff Estimate @ 100% ’ : . $ 200,553

Please Note: 2016/17 budgets do not include an amount for Retroactive Pay. Please refer to Appendix B
for information to assist in estimating your Retroactive Pay liability.
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RCWMP Municipal Under - 5 Year Farecast Schadule 2
Total of All Detachments MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniuUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder
2015-16 to 2019-20 Fiscal Estimates 14/15 Final 15/16 Pre Final | 16/17 Budget 18/19 19/20 20/21 Esti 21/22
CONTRACT STRENGTH 436.95 440,95 443.95 443.95 445,85 445.95 445.95
UTILIZATION 369.29 386.58 443.95 443.95 445.95 445,95 445,95

COSY ELEMENT GROUP (CEG)

STANDARD OBJ. 02- TRANSPORT & TELECOM

CEG 50 - TRAVEL 238,603 263,951 300,000 308,000 312,120 318,362 324,730
’C_Eg §1 - TRAVEL ADVANCES - - - - - - -
CEG 52 - TRAINING TRAVEL {DCCEG 360,524 461,165 409,122 489,600 499,392 509,380 519,567
CEG 53 - TRAINING TRAVEL (POST) 65,656 66,128 86,426 99,960 101,959 103,958 108,078
CEG 54 - IPA & FSD TRAVEL - 1,833 - - - - -

EG 55 - CENTRALIZED TRAINING TRAVEL

b ) 2o
CEG 70 - FREIGHT, POSTAGE, ETC.

g

91,945

i
103,936

111,427 |

CEG 100 - TELEPHONE SERVICES (DCCEG)

R
109,242

CEG 101 - TELEPHONE SERVICES (POST)

CEG 140 - COMPUYER COMM SERVICES

TOTAL STANDARD OBJ. 02- TRANSPORT & TELECOM

2,674,099

2,682,369

903 418

1,002,660

1,022,713

1,043,167

1,064,031

STANDARD OBJ. 03 - INFORMATION

CEG 120 - ADVERTISING

1,969

1,856

2,284

2,346

2,393

2,441

2,490

CEG 130 - PUBLICATIONS SERVICES

2,596

4,309

2,791

TOTAL STANDARD OBJ. 03 - INFORMATION

4,565

6,164

5,075

2,856

2,913

2,971

3,001

5,202

5,306

5,412

5,520

G)

924,551

NA

BV
}

CEG 213 - CORPS OF COMMISSIONAIRES _

14,937

988,380

1,008,148

27,337

27,883

CEG 218 - CONTAMINATED SITE

52,531

CEG 219 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 309,196 363,36 372,900 387,967 385,727 403,841 411,714
CEG 220 - OTHER SERVICES 25,133 35.073 36,058 36,924 37,662 38,416 39,184
CEG 221 - OTHER SERVICES IMAT 116,751 153,302 133,000 157,449 159,885 162,361 164,836
CEG 223 - RADIQ COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS §36,837 616,453 700,176 775,467 796,324 817,773 839,800
CEG 228 - CADC SPENDING OF PROCEEDS - - - . v .
& 3 b 9 T e S 22 22 % L G, S s e o 2 5
CEG 230 - DIV FUND TRANSFER - - - - - -
CEG 231 - DCM FUND TRANSFER - - - - - N
CEG 232 - O&M OPERATIONAL CONTINGENGY - - - ~ - -
CEG 233 - CORPORATE CONTINGENCY - - - - - -
TOTAL STANDARD OB.l. 04 - PROF & SPEC SVCS 2,031,045 2,975,391 2,363,608 2,405,315 2,458,222 2,512,285

STANDARD DBJ, 05 - RENTALS

11,113

CEG 250 - RENTAL COMNS EQUIP (DCCEG)

70,019

16,157

16,480 |

16,810

CEG 251 - BENTAL COMNS. EQUIP (POST)

CEG 258 - RENTAL MOTORIZED VEHICLES

8,818

19,150

10,560

10,771

10,987

11,206

CEG 260 - RENTAL OF CONVEYANCE

CEG 261 - LEASING OF AIRCRAFT

CEG 266 - LEASED VEHICLES

CEG 280 - RENTAL COMPUTER EQUIP

4,436

8,837

6,544

73,913

76,1

76,414

80,767

CEG 2590 - RENTAL - OTHER

33,958

36,131

42,900

43,860

35,632

46,545

TOTAL STANDARD OBJ. 05 - RENTALS

48,157

68,767

144,838

740,648,

144,173

0
44,787
147,795

151,513

155,327
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CEG 591 - PAYMENTS FOR EARLY PAYMENT
|CE ENT: INEIEVGETAX]
CEG 600 - FOREIGN SERVICE

g

CEG 650 - WRITE-OFF

RCMP Municipal Under - 5 Year Forecast Schedule 2
Total of All Detachments MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MunlUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder
2015-16 1o 2019-20 Fiscal Estimates 14/15 Final 15/16 Pre Final | 16/17 Budget 18/19 Esti 19/20 20/21 21/22
CONTRACT STRENGTH 436.85 440.95 443,95 443.95 445.96 445,95 445.95
UTILIZATION . 388.29 386.58 443,95, 443,95 445,95 445,95 445,95
COST ELEMENT GROUP (CEG)
OB.J, 06 - PUR, REPAIR & MAINTENANCE
AR OF BUILDING K

& BOATS - - - - - - C -
CEG 360 - REPAIR OF AIRCRAFT - - - - - - -
CEG 370 - AEPAIR OF VEHICLES 576,351 670,656 609,000 657,043 670,184 683,588 697,260
CEG 380 - REPAIR OF OFFICE & L.AB EQUIP 1,151 2,689 10,150 6,120 6,242 6,367 6,495
CEG 330 - REPAIR OF MISC. EQUIP. 45,463 24,866 20,300 21,120 21,543 21,973 22,413
CEG 392 -~ REPAIR OF AFIS EQUIPMENT - - - - - - -
CEG 393 - REPAIR OF EDP EQUIPMENT 3,280 7,207 7,874 8,111 8,354 8,605
TOTAL STANDARD OBJ. 06 - PUR, REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 808,967 758,123 639,450 692,158 706,080 720,282 734,774
STANDARD OBJ. 07 - UTILITIES, MATERIAL & SUPPLIES
[CEGHOD EITIES: deieanis
CEG 430 - FUEL 1,036,424 908,699 1450, 1,178,100 1,201,662 1,225,685 1,250,209
CEG 470 - PHOTOGRAPHIC GOODS 6,370 7,112 20,190 20,912 21,330 21,757 22,192
CEG 500 - STATIONERY 169,961 154,297 211,000 218,341 222,708 227,162 231,705
CEG 510 - CLOTHING & KiT 183,732 194,507 194,000 201,828 205,874 209,992 214,192
CEG 530 LAB SUPPLIES 240 3 1,018 1,056 1,077 1,098 1,121
CEG 540 - POST BUDGET EXPENDITURES 144,181 179,805 258,000 263,160 268,423 273,792 279,267
CEG 541 - ACQUISITION CREDIT CARDS - - - - - - N
CEG 550- HOUSE FURNISHINGS - - - - - - ~
CEG 630 ~ MESS PURCHASES - - - - - - -
CEG 640 - MESS CREDITS - - - ~ - - -
[TOTAL STANDARD OBJ. 07 - UTILITIES, MATERIAL & SUPPLIES 1,690,746 1,883,672 2,134,115 1,883,407 1,921,075 1,959,496 1,998,686
STANDARD OBJ. 09 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT
CEG 440 - TRANSPORT SUPPLIES 45,474 44,572 48,000 49,939 50,938 51,957 52,996
CEG 441 - VEHICLE CHANGEOVERS 274,152 194,414 315,249 299,880 305,878 311,985 318,235
CEG 450 - COMNS PARTS & CONSUMABLES 34,756 36,780 40,300 41,157 41,960 42,820 43,676
CEG 480 - FIREARMS & AMMO 134,182 192,876 126,875 204,000 208,080 212,242 216,486
CEG 770 - COMMS. SYSTEMS (CAPITAL) 209,030 214,892 227,541 236,848 237,092.00 237,944 242,091
CEG 771 - COMMS, EQUIPMENT 6,403 4,912 7,674 - - - -
CEG 810 - LAB EQUIP. - - - - - - -
CEG 811 - SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT - NON SALARY (CAPITAL) - - - - - - -
CEG 812 - SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT - SALARY (CAPITAL) - - - - - - -
CEG 820 - PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIP. 70 asq 3,045 3111 3,173 3,237 3,301
CEG 821 - AFIS EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL) 95,620 48,910 118,478 123,267 125,732 128,247 130,812
CEG 822 - IDENT EQUIP, - - - - - -
CEG 830 - FURNITURE & FIXTURES - - - c ] - -
CEG 840 - COMPUTER FQUIPMENT (CAPITAL) - - - - - -
CEG 841 - COMPUTER EQUIP. 195,335 62,872 255,000 260,100 265,30; 270,608
CEQ 842 - COMPUTER S/WARE INFORMATICS §,773 1,382 - - - N
CEG 845 - SPECIALIZED EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL) - - - - . -
CEG 850 - AUDIO VISUAL AIDS 86 133 4,284 4,370 4,457 4,546
CEG 860 ~ INVESTIGATIONAL EQUIP, 158,793 42110 55,000 57,222 58,366 59,534 60,724
CEG 870 - SHIPS AND BOATS (CAPITAL) - - - - - - -
CEG 871 - BOATS - TRAILERS & MOTORS - - - - - - -
CEG 880 - AIRGRAFT (CAPITAL) - - - - - - -
CEG B90 - VEHICLES (CAPITAL) 1,120,274 897,722 1,300,000 1,224,000 1,248,480 1,273,450 1,298,919
CEG 891 - MISC. VEHICLES - - - - - - - |
CEG 800 - OTHER EQUIP, 4,820 3,336 10,302 10,720 10,935 11,153 11,376
CEQ 910 - OFFICE MACHINES 28,840 30,44 48,360 48,245 49,211 50,195 51,199
CEG 920 - SECURITY EQUIP. 63,054 54,07 304,500 | A 316,812 323,148 329,611 336,203
TOTAL STANDARD ORJ. 09 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,377,303 1,829,47 2,934,344 2,822,540 2,874,486 2,927,483 2,981,543 3,041,174
STANDARD OBJ. 12 - OTHER SUBSIDES / PYMTS
CEG 570 - PRISONER EXPENSES - - - - - - "
CEG 580 - SECRET EXPENSES 17,981 8,084 50,750 52,02 53,060 54,122 55,204
CEG 581 ~ SPECIAL "I" EXPENDITURES - - - - - L. -
CEG 590 - MISC EXPEND 872 1,097 3,216 3,280 3345 3,412

[TOTAL STANDARD OB, 12 - OTHER SUBSIDES  PYMTS i 606,665 | 4,909,476 | 53,841 55,236 | 56,340 | 57,467 | 58,616 |

[TOTAL DIRECT COSTS (Before Credits & Adjustments) | 48,655,600 | 53,609,769 | 63,335,152 | 54,423,741 | 56,117,032 | 57,663,967 | 59,059,494 | 60,493,577 |
$.0. 01 - CEG 32 - Pay Members (Mat/Pat/Severance) 439,055 84,818 - - - -
S.0. 01 - CEG's 40 & 41 -Transfer Allowances 353,865 417,619 - - - -
S.0. 02 - CEG's 60-66 Transfer Cost 1,917,371 1,685,356 - - - P
100% SHARED SERVICES CANADA - (Vatious CEGs) - - - - - N
5.0, 04 - CEG 160 - Legal Services 151,352 506,214 - - C -
S.0. 04 - CEG's 200, 201 & 202 - Health Services 278 - - - - B
$.0. 04 - CEG 213 - Corp Of Commissionaires - - - - - -
S.0.12 - CEG 592 Payment in Lieu of Taxes - - - - - T
S.0.12 - CEG 620 - Compensation Claims/Ex-Gratia 469,008 4,779,341 - - - N
1CBC Repairs to Potice Vehicles Credit - - - - - _
Refund of Credits under GE_1677/1680/1687/1691/ 20,137 - - - - <

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS (After Credits & Adjustments} 1 45,404,822 | 46,236,421 | 53,335,152 | 54,423,741 | 56,117,032 | 57,663,967 | 59,058,454 | 60,493,577 |
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COST ELEMENT GROUP (CEG)

RCMP Municipai Under - 5 Year Forecast Schedule 2
Total of All Detachments BuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder
2015-15 to 2019-20 Fiscal Estimates 14/15 Final 15/16 Pre Final | 16/17 Budget 16/19 19/20 20/21 21/22
CONTRACT STRENGTH 436.95 440,95 443,95 443,85 445,95 44595 445.95
UTILIZATION 388.29 306.58 443,95 443,95 445,95 445.95 445,95

1) Cost of RM Pensions

6,676,174 7,477,252 9,201,260 9,669,

Al 0,201,847 10,456,880

A
2) Cost of RM CPP 947,086 964,922 1,135,069 1,193,321 1,228,664 1,259,381 1,280,865
3) Cost of Employer's Contr, to E.l, for R/M's 434,300 442,404 521,690 L . v' & 547,121 563,326 577,409 591,844
4) Cost of Division Administration {per cap x avg.# Rb's) 8,761,024 9,240,064 10,965,565 1_*3,’58(!:’ 12,164,230 12,664,980 13,155,525 13,646,070
5) Cost of Recruitment & Training 1,359,021 1,509,600 1,941,393 53,674 2,246,387 2,256,607 2,256,507 2,256,507
6) Cost of Natlonal Programs 878,155 581,109 1,122,630 X 1,124,934 1,131,629 3,132,828 1,132,829
7) Cost of Police Dog Service Training - 8,287 8,336 12,215 12,218 12,2185

B) Cost of TCE & IM for Pension, El & Div Admin
] CT.Cl Ef ]

3,534

]TOTAL COSTS (Direct & Indirect } 100%

78,234,667

64,162,269.19 | 66,463,592 |

83,079,123 | 85,478,756 | 87,659,864 | 69,885,560 |
FEDERAL COST - 30 % 19,245,680.76 | 19,939,077 | 23,470,400 24923737 |  25643,627| 26,207,959 | 26,965,668 |
[MUNICIPAL COST - 70% 44,913,588,43 | 46,524,514 | 54,764,267 58,155,386 | 50,835,129 | 61,361905] 52,919,892

RESERVISTS 0.45 1.05 .91 1.04 1.08 1.08 111
PSE'S

INDIRECT COSTS - (REGULAR & CIVILIAN MEMBERS) |

1) Pensions (Total Pensionable Earnings) 33,001,355 32,938,434 40,534,183 - 42,597,360 43,845,368 44,842,057 46,065,549
Pension Rate 20.23% 22.70% 0.23 22.70% 22.70% 22,70% 22.70%)
Total Cost of RM/CM Pension.... 6,676,174, 7.477,252 9,201,260] ° 9,669,601 9,953,035 10,201,847 10,456,880

2) CPP {Pensionable Earnings) based on a Per Capita Cost of.... 2,439.11 2,496.04 2,566.75 2,687.96 2,755.16 2,824.04 2,894.64
Total Cost of R/M CPP..viue. 847,088 964,322 1,135,069 1,193,321 1,228,664 1,259,381 1,290,865

3) Employer's Contr. to E.l based on a Per Capita Cost of.... 1,118.49 1,144.40 1,175.11 1,232.39 1,263.20 1,204.78 1,327,415
Total Cast of RM E,L. Contributions...... 434,300 442,404 521,690 547,121 563,326 577,408 591,844

4) Diviston Administration based on a Per Caplta Cost of.,., 22,563.00 23,902.00 24,700.00] 27,400 28,400 29,500 30,600
Total Cost of Div, Administration 8,761,024 9,240,064 10,965,565 12,164,230 12,664,980 13,155,525 13,646,070

5) Cost of Recruitment & Tralning
Per Capita Cost of Recruitment.... 3,500 1,025 1,181.00| 1,399 1,399 1,999 1,399
Per Capita Cost of Cadet Training Program. (9ﬂemrom 2015/2016).., - 2,880 3,192.00 3,661 3,661 3,661 3,661
Tota) Cost of Recruitment & Trng.: (Per Capita times FTE Utilization): 1,359,021 1,609,600 1,841,393 2,246,387 2,256,507 2,256,507 2,256,507

6) Cost of Natlona! Programs {See Addendum 'A') 1,489 1,503 2,528,73] 2,634 2,538 2,540 2,540
Total Cost of National Programs 578,155 581,109 1,122,630 1,124,934 1,131,629 1,132,829 1,132,829

7) Police Dog Svc, Trng. hased on a Per Cap. cost of (eff. F/¥r, 2015/1€)... - 27,624 27,788.00| 24,928 24,928 24,928 24,928

times the Avg. # of Palice Dog Teams InF.Y 0.30 048 0.49 0.49 0.49

_-Total Cost of PDS,Trnd.: (Per cap. times # of PD Teams in F.V: - PO SRR : 1v.1: 4 A 12,248 12215 12,215 512,215

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS - (RM's & CM's): 18,755,760 20,223,637 24,895,843.22 26,939,457 26,957,808 27,810,355 28,595,712 29,387,209

INDIRECT COSTS - RESERVIST's

a) CPP for Reservists based on a Per cap cost of... 2,822,147

Total Gost of CPP; (Per Capita times ETE Utifization) ,

b) Employer's Contributions to E.|, based on a Per cap. cost of.

Total Cost of E.l"Contrib. {Per Capita.fimas FTE Utilizatiol

8)TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS - RESERVISTS 1,686.96 3,533.95 » _3,572.54] 4,174 4,283 4,433 4,658 4,774

ITOTAL INDIRECT COSTS: 18,889,883 23,640,003 24,899,515.76 25,943,631 26,962,091 27,814,789 28,600,370 ‘ 29,391,983
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RCMP Municipal Under - 5 Year Forecast ~ Schedule 2
Total of All Detachments MuniUnder Munilinder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MuniUnder MunilUnder
2015-16 to 2019-20 Fiscal Estimates 14/15 Final 15/18 Pre Final | 16/17 Budget 4 18/9 19/20 20/21 Esti 21/22 £
CONTRACT STRENGTH 436.95 440,85 443,35 443,85 445,95 445,85 445.95
UTILIZATION 388.29 364.58 443,95 443.95 445.95 445.85 445,95
COST ELEMENT GROUP {CEG) :
NATIONAL PROGRAMS:
Cadet & Recruit Training (See Indirect Costs ltem 5) - - - - - -
Police Dog Service Training (See Indirect Costs tem 7) - - - - - -
OTHER INDIRECT COSTS:
Public ComEIaints Committee (PCC) 475.87 508.48] 493.59 493.59 493.59 493,59 493.59
Legal Advisory Services 167.61 165.53] 171.57 176.76 179.41 182.10 182.10
Enhanced Reporting & Accountability 119.91 118.31 119.57 119.57 119.57| 119.57] 118.57
Estimated Annual Severance 0.00] 1023.00 1,023.00 1023.00 1024.00’ 1024.00 1024.00|
CONSOLIDATED SERVICES:
SSC (Shared Services Canada) 726.18 721.00 721.00 721.00 721.00 721.00 721.00
Total Cost 1488.97 2536.32] 2,528.73 2533.92 2637.57 2540.26 2540.26
IPER CAPITA CALCULATION |
DIRECT COSTS ) 48,665,509.68 63,609,768 53,335,151.52| 54,423,741 | 56,117,032 57,663,967 59,058,494 60,493,577
974,875.87 1,027,481 0.00 - - - "
40,564.73 95,780 85,500.00 102,500 105,063 107,689 110,381
2,858,802.63 3,483,600 3,278,403.00 3,638,300 3,631,860 3,722,770 3,815,830
863,038.65 725,947 0.00 - - - -
£5,849.87 128,777 0.00] - - - -
$ 43,852,468 $ 48,150,175 49,971,248.52 52,476,232 | $ 53,926,945 |$ 55,229,035 |$ 56,567,366
18,767,446.81 20,227,171 24,899,515.76 28,962,091 27,814,789 28,600,370 29,391,983
& X A 1,686.96 _11.821 16,498 16,648 16,872 16,988
Total Indirect Cos?s for Billing Purpose $ 18,755,760 [§ 20,215,350 26945593 [$§ 27,798,141 ([§ 28,583,497 [$ 29,374,995
Total Direct and Indirect Costs for Billing Purpase $ 62,608228|$ 68,365524 |$ 74,858,855 } S.Mzt $ 794218268 B1,725085($ 83812532|$ BS5,942,360 |
CREDITS $§ 3251065|% 7,973,349 !$ - - s - s - s .
Adjustments Manua} 1,204.49 .
TOTAL COSTS FOR BILLING PURPOSE $ 59,358,367 |8 60,002,176 |$ 74,858,855 | 876800694 |8 79421826 |8 81725085 |§ 83,812,632 | 85,942,360
PER CAPITA @ 70% $ 107,280 [§ ° 11043918 118,034 | § 122,206 { § 125,230 1§ 134,904

COLOUR LEGEND
Red = Post Budget CEGS controlled by Unit Commander
Black = Division Controlled CEG (DCCEG)
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' SCHEDULE 3
NOTES & ASSUMPTIONS for 2017/18
Municipal Contracts

Our terminology for the grouping of General Accounts:
- Cost Element Group (CEG)
- Cost Element (CE) -

NOTES ON DIRECT COSTS

CEG 30 - RCMP Members Pay

CE 110 - Regular Pay -

® 2.50% estimated salary increase for each future year

J Beginning in 2014/15, the majority of intelligence monitors are included in Member
Pay. Indirects will be charged based on FTE equivalent at Member rates.

® The Civilian Member (CM) category of employee will be eliminated, as per Bill
C-42. The timing and impacts of this change are uncertain, therefore CMs have been
forecasted based on the status quo.

o New cadets spend an additional two weeks at Depot receiving additional training,
which is charged to the receiving unit.

CE 1127 — Retro Pay — Prior Years
Once new pay agreements are reached, retroactive payments may be made in the
2016/17 fiscal year. A provision for this was not included in the 2016/17 budget,
but it was communicated in the 2016/17 Multi-Year Plan package. Please see
Appendix B for a per member estimate of retroactive pay.

CE 2103 - Operational Clothing Allowance
On January 13, 2016, the Treasury Board of Canada Secretariat approved the new
list of job codes eligible for the Operational Clothing Allowance (0OCA),
retroactive to April 1, 2013. This will result in slightly decreased savings going
forward.” Average retroactive impact is under $10,000 for 95% of municipalities.

CEG 052 - Travel - Training
Significant increase over 2016/17 budget is due to new training requirements for
Immediate Action Rapid Deployment (IARD) and carbine training. On average, the
increase is 20% from 2015/16 to 2017/18. :

CEG 190 - Training _
Significant increase over 2016/17 budget is due to new training requirements following
recommendations of recent critical incidents such as the Moncton shootings. This training
includes Immediate Action Rapid Deployment (IARD), Operational Skills Training, and
carbine training. New enhanced training will begin in2016-17 but will be absorbed in the
already-approved budget by reducing other discretionary training. Going forward, all new
cadets will be fully trained at Depot for carbines and IARD instead of having to return for
additional training. The receiving unit will pay for these training costs, as they do for

2016-05-10
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SCHEDULE 3

- members of their detachment. The budget for increased training requirements has been put
into 2017/18. On average, the increase is 20% from 2015/16 to 2017/18.

CEG 480 — Firearms/Ammunition
Increase budget allotted in 2017/18 due to continued carbine deployment and expected
increases in ammunition used for practice and training requirements.

CEG 221 — Other Services IMIT
The forecast includes the Central Transcription Unit (CTU) costs. CTU was formed in 2006
to provide 24/7 Helpdesk and Transcription services.

CEG 223 — Radio Communications .
Forecasts for ECOMM and PRIME are included here. Those municipalities on ECOMM
will see a slight increase related to replacing loan radios. Municipal radio repair technician
positions are also included here.

CEG 920 — Security Equipment
Installation and equipment costs for Closed Circuit Video Equipment (CCVE) will be
included here.

DIRECT COST DEDUCTIONS

These are deducted from the Total Direct Cost for each municipality.

Non-billable costs are deducted and paid by the Federal Government:
- CEGs 40 & 41 - Transfer Allowances.
- CEGs 60-66 — Relocation Costs.
- CEG 160 - Legal Services.
- CEG 620 - Claims and Cempensation Settlements.

These costs are deducted and included in the Division Administration Costs.in the Indirect Costs:
- CEG 32 —Pay Members (Severance, Maternity and Parental allowances).
- CEGs 200-202 - Health Services,

INDIRECT COSTS

Wlth the exception of Member Pension, all costs hsted below are charged on a per FTE basis for
members.

- Member Pension — 22.70% of pensionable cost element items

- Member Canada Pension Plan - $2,622

- Employment Insurance - $1,202

2016-05-10
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SCHEDULE 3

- Division Administration - $26,400 — (Please refer to attached schedule 4) - Includes an
estimate for E Division HQ @ $900 per FTE

- A separate calculation is listed for EI and CPP with respect to Reservists (if used).

= Other Indirect Costs:
- Civilian Review and Complaints Commission (formerly PCC) - $494
- Legal Advisory Services - $174
- Enhanced Reporting & Accountability - $120
- Estimated Annual Severance — Based on annual liability - $1,023

- Shared Services Canada (SSC) - $721 — SSC provides telecommunication and email
services, networks, data centres, and servers to the RCMP. This rate is based on the
historical costs for certain covered services. Units requesting additional services will be
billed separately for those services.

Training & Recruiting: Forecasted as a national program starting in 2015/16. For 2017/18 rates are

estimated at $3,560 per FTE for the Cadet Training Program and $1,358 per FTE for
recruiting,

Police Dog Service Training: Forecasted as a national program starting 2015/16 based on
established PDS teams in each contract jurisdiction. For 2017/ 18, the cost is estimated at
$25,233 per PDS team. For Lower Mainland District municipalities, this cost will be
included in the Integrated Teams budget.

COSTS BILLABLE AT 100%

The following are some of the items that are billable at 100% per the policing contract:
- Accommodation costs (including occupancy charge) for municipal units in federally
owned buildings. 4 .
- PS Support staff costs (including backfills, overtime, severance, pension, CPP, etc.).
- Furniture and fixtures.
- House Furnishings
- Prisoner costs (including mattresses and blankets for cells).
- Kit and Clothing for auxiliaries.

2016-05-10
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Schedule 6

City of XXXXXX —

XXXXXX Ave., Municipality Under 15,000
XXXXXX, B.C. ‘ Sample Response

June 10, 2016

Mr, Clayton Pecknold

Assistant Deputy Minister and Director of Police Services
Ministry of Justice

P.0O. Box 9285 Stn Prov Govt,

Victoria, British Columbia

V8W 917

Dear Sir:

Re : Municipal Contract Policing Resource Request — 2017 /18

This Letter of Approval in Principle is issued to conform to the Federal Treasury Board requirements to enable the
Federal Government to set aside sufficient financial resources to cover their share of Municipal RCMP confract costs.

The City of XXXXXX anticipates that we will require the addition of ### (#) members to our detachment strength
of ## to bring the total detachment strength to ## (see Schedule 1) for the 2017/18 fiscal year.

@ 100 % @ 70%
Establishment FTE
Per Capita 174,580 122,206
Contract Cost (excluding Overtime)
Overtime (Includes Reservists)
PDSTC -(if applicable) '
Total Per Capita and OT 2017/18 (A)
* If applicable

Municipal Cost

Integrated Teams (B)
RTIC - Real Time Intelligence Centre (C)
[Accommodation Billed @ 100 % | TR | )]
|PS Recovery Billed @ 100 % I R s | E®)
Total Municipal Budget Cap for 2017/18 Total (A+B+C+D+E)

As outlined above, this lefter provides an “approval in principle” and is issued for planning purposes only. 1t should not be taken
as approval to add the anticipated ## of members to the detachment. City Council will be meeting on XXX, 2016 to confirm
the 2017/18 budget and the number of additional human resources. We will inform you of that decision once it is made.

If you have any questions, please call the undersigned at (604) 123-4567.
Thank you.

Yours truly,

John Doe _
Treasurer/Deputy Administrator

cc: XXXXXXX RCMP Detachment

Max Xiao, Regional Director, Finance Section E & M Divisions, Corporate Management & Comptrollership Branch
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Schedule 7

The Honourable Mike Morris

Solicitor General & Minister of Public Safety
P.0. Box 9010 Prov. Govt.

Victoria, British Columbia V8W 915

Dear Minister Morris:

RE: Request for Decrease/Increase in Member(s) to [Municipality Name] Authorxzed
Strength

The Council of the [Municipality Name] has authorized a decrease/increase of one (1) regular
member to its municipal policing establishment for the 2017/2018 fiscal year, effective
Septembel 1,2017. The current [Municipality Name] establishment is nine (9) members. With
the increase/decrease of one position, the authorized establishment will be ten (10)

I confirm our incremental financial commitment for the costs for the requested increase/decrease.
Since establishment increases/decreases require amendments to Annex “A” of the
Federal/Provincial Agreement, please take the necessary steps to amend the Annex “A” by
contacting the Solicitor General of Canada.

Thank you for your attention to this matter,

[Name/signature)]

Cc:

Officer in Charge, [Local Detachment)

Michelle Lee, Establishment Coordinator, RCMP “E” Division Headquarters

Max Xiao, Regional Director, Financial Management, RCMP “E” Division Headquarters
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Ladysmith

Municipal

Cost
Public Service Support Staff 3.0-FTE
Estimated Salary (see below) $ 166,717
Pension 11.80% 19,673
cPP $  2,622.00 7,866
El $ 1,378.00 4,134
sSsC $ 721.00 2,163
IPA - Isolated Post Allowances (subject to TB decision) -
Total Indirect $ 33,836

Iguarterly Invoice | | $ 50,138
Salary Forecasted Estimate

CRo4 $ 50,698.72 . -
CRO5 $ 55,572.46 3.00 166,717
ASO1 $ 56,725.15 - -
AS02 $ 60,894.18 - -
Total Estimated Salary $ 166,717

Notes:

PSAC is still without a contract. Expired June 20, 2014

Salary Estimate based on 0.5% increase from 2016/17 Estimate.
Estimate does not include any back fill / casual positions.
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LADYSMITH

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
Financial Information Act
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility of the management of the Town
of Ladysmith and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting standards.

In carrying out its responsibilities, management maintains appropriate systems of internal and administrative
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are executed in accordance with proper
authorization, that assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded, and that financial information produced
is relevant and reliable.

MNP LLP as the Municipality's appointed external auditors, have audited the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Auditor's report is addressed to the Mayor and members of Council and appears on the
following page. Their opinion is based upon an examination conducted in accordance with Canadian Auditing
Standards, performing such tests and other procedures as they consider necessary to obtain reasonable
assurance that the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstatement and present fairly the
financial position and results of the Municipality in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards. :

Kma Q0

Ruth Malli~6PA, CGA
Chief Administration Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Mayor and Council of the Town of Ladysmith:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Town of Ladysmith, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and the consolidated statements of operations, cash
flows and changes in net financial assets and related schedules for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Town
of Ladysmith as at December 31, 2015 and the results of its operations, changes in net financial assets and its cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Nanaimo, British Columbia MA/P LLP

April 18, 2016 Chartered Professional Accountants

400-345 Wallace Street, Nanaimo, British Columbia, VIR 5B6, Phone: (250) 753-8251 MNP
LLP
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Financial Assets
Cash and short term deposits (Note 3)
Accounts receivable (Note 4)

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5)
Post-employment benefits (Note 6)

Deferred revenue (Note 7)

Refundable deposits and other (Note 8)
Restricted reserves - other (Note 9)

Development cost charge reserve (Note 9)
Federal gas tax reserve (Note 11)

Obligations under capital lease (Note 12 & Schedule I)
Equipment Financing (Note 13)

Short term financing (Note 14 & Schedule II)
Debenture debt (Note 15 & Schedule 111)

Net Financial Assets

Non-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Schedule X)
Prepaids
Inventory

Accumulated Surplus (Note 20)

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 16)

4 N

\x“"\wDiféé STOFOf

Jl’-zinancial Services

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

-3-
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2015 2014
$ 13,653,298 $ 12,790,890
2,934,237 4,175,786
16,587,535 16,066,676
2,030,493 1,734,074
268,000 276,300
368,849 311,057
391,720 333,530
490,270 480,150
1,769,872 1,477,171
1,060,650 976,699
445 707 558,406
42,952 -
4,920,000 -
2,976,232 3,231,518
14,764,745 9,378,905
1,822,790 7,587,771
89,175,441 80,163,584
107,343 101,293
74,792 74,824
89,357,576 80,339,701
$ 91,180,366 $ 87,927,472




Revenue

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Taxes - (Schedule IV)

Fees and charges

General (Schedule V)
Sewer (Schedule V)
Water (Schedule V)

Investment Income

Penalty and interest on tax

Grants (Schedule VIII)

Donations and contributed tangible capital assets
Gain on foreign exchange

Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets
Municipal Finance Authority refunds

Development fees

Local area improvements

Gas tax funds utilized

Expenses

General government services

Protective services

Transportation services

Garbage services
Cemetery services

Development services
Recreation and cultural services
Parks operation services

Sewer
Water

Annual Surplus

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year

Accumulated Surplus - end of year

Budget
2015 2015 2014
(Note 21)

$ 9,164,130 $ 9,162,471 $ 8,619,254
1,894,740 1,758,454 1,735,798
791,347 767,278 741,877
713,268 765,290 713,777
132,452 105,000 130,693
123,546 123,000 123,986
2,534,795 4,330,519 3,504,463
241,914 128,700 143,043
131,994 - 95,762
164,961 - (35,830)
47,299 - -
108,075 108,075 111,625
- - 8,922
299,363 755,400 261,684
16,347,884 18,004,187 16,155,054
2,270,072 2,361,001 2,240,654
1,901,564 1,985,484 1,805,295
1,971,138 2,334,276 2,172,972
485,293 553,020 454,278
21,492 30,072 23,999
516,386 691,077 560,900
2,387,738 2,527,052 2,342,825
894,327 903,188 836,094
1,274,354 1,664,386 1,074,454
1,372,626 1,246,229 975,569
13,094,990 14,295,785 12,487,040
3,252,894 3,708,402 3,668,014
87,927,472 87,927,472 84,259,458
$ 91,180,366 $91,635,874 $ 87,927,472

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014
Operating Transactions
Annual Surplus $ 3,252,894 $ 3,668,014
Less non-cash items included in surplus:
Amortization 2,512,157 2,436,048
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets (164,961) 35,830
Actuarial adjustments on debenture debt (88,962) (78,504)
Contributed tangible capital assets (127,251) (110,215)
5,383,877 5,951,173
Accounts receivable 1,241,549 (1,275,040)
Prepaid expenses (6,050) 17,356
Inventory 32 9,251
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 296,420 171,550
Post employment benefits (8,300) 50,400
Deferred revenues 57,792 81,817
Refundable deposits and other 58,190 (62,712)
Restricted reserves 10,120 5,937
Development cost charge reserve 292,701 (40,519)
Gas tax reserve 83,951 121,711
Cash provided by operating transactions 7,410,282 5,030,925
Capital Transactions
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 166,975 6,426
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (11,398,779) (4,606,232)
(11,231,804) (4,599,806)
Financing
Proceeds of short-term financing 4,920,000 -
Repayment of long-term debt and capital leases (236,071) (231,251)
Net (Decrease) Increase in cash from financing 4,683,929 (231,251)
Increase in Cash and Short Term Deposits 862,407 199,868
Cash and Short Term Deposits - Beginning of Year 12,790,890 12,591,022
Cash and Short Term Deposits - End of Year $ 13,653,298 $ 12,790,890

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
-5-
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Annual Surplus

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Loss (gain) on sale of tangible capital assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets
Decrease (Increase) in inventories
Decrease (Increase) in prepaids

Change in Net Financial Assets
Net Financial Assets, beginning of year

Net Financial Assets, end of year

Budget
2015 2015 2014
(Note 21)
$ 3,252,804 $ 3,708,402 $ 3,668,014
(11,526,030) (16,657,483) (4,764,215)
2,512,157 2,485,372 2,436,048
(164,961) - 35,830
166,975 - 6,429
32 - 9,251
(6,050) - 17,356
(5,764,982) (10,463,709) 1,408,713
7,587,771 6,179,058
$ 1,822,790 $ 7,587,771

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

General

The Town of Ladysmith was incorporated under the provisions of the British Columbia Municipal Act.
Its principal activities are the provision of local government services in the Town, as governed by the
Community Charter and the Local Government Act.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
They provide detailed information and explain the significant accounting and reporting policies and
principles that form the basis of these statements. They also provide relevant supplementary
information and explanations which cannot be expressed in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation

It is the Town’s policy to follow Canadian public sector accounting standards for local governments
and to apply such principles consistently. The financial resources and operations of the Town have
been consolidated for financial statement purposes and include the accounts of all of the funds of
the Town.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The
accrual basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenses are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based upon the receipt of goods and services or
the creation of an obligation to pay.

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
changes in fund balances and financial position of the Town. These consolidated financial
statements consolidate the following operations:

General Revenue Fund General Capital Fund
Water Revenue Fund Water Capital Fund
Sewer Revenue Fund Sewer Capital Fund

Reserve Fund
(b) Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the
reporting entity. The reporting entity is comprised of all the funds, agencies, local boards, and
committees of the Council which are controlled by the Town. Control is defined as the power to
govern the financial and reporting policies of another organization with the expected benefits or risk
of loss to the Town. The controlled organizations are consolidated after adjusting their accounting
policies to a basis consistent with the accounting policies of the Town. Interfund and intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated. The controlled organizations include DL 2016
Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Town.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are classified
according to their functional use. Cost includes all amounts that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. Donated assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value upon acquisition. Certain tangible capital assets for which historical cost
information is not available have been recorded at current fair market values discounted by a
relevant inflation factor. Certain assets are disclosed at a nominal value as the determination of
current fair market value was not available. The Town does not capitalize interest charges as part of
the cost of its tangible capital assets.

Tangible capital assets are amortized over their estimated useful life, with a half-year’s provision in
the year of acquisition, on the straight-line method at the following annual rates:

General Tangible Capital Assets

Land Indefinite
Land Improvements 15to 75 years
Buildings 2510 40 years
Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles 5 to 60 years

Engineering Structures

Roads and Sidewalks 20 to 75 years
Storm and Sewer 25to 75 years
Water 20 to 80 years

Constructions in progress contain capital projects underway but not yet complete or put into use.
Once put into use, the asset will be amortized based on the above annual rates for the applicable
category of work performed.

Certain assets have historical or cultural value including works of art, historical documents as well as
historical and cultural artifacts that are not recognized as tangible capital assets because a
reasonable estimate of the future benefits associated with such property cannot be made.
Intangibles, Crown lands and other natural resources are not recognized as tangible capital assets.
(d) Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Cash and short-term deposits have maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition,
reported in Canadian funds using the exchange rate of the prescribed bank as of December 31.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Restricted Reserves and Deferred Revenues

Receipts which are restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are deferred and reported as restricted reserves. When qualifying expenses are incurred,
restricted reserves are brought into revenue at equal amounts, in accordance with Revenue
Recognition policy 2 (h). These revenues are comprised of the amounts shown in Note 9.

Revenues received from non-government sources in advance of expenses which will be incurred in
a later period are deferred until the associated purchase or expense is incurred.

(f) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the collectability of accounts
receivable, accrued liabilities, post-employment benefits, provisions for contingencies and
amortization rates, useful lives and salvage values for determining tangible capital asset values.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Liabilities for contaminated sites are estimated
based on the best information available regarding potentially contaminated sites that the Town is
responsible for. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in operations in the period of settlement.

(g) Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to the ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All
other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.

Rental payments under operating leases are expensed as incurred.

The Town currently rents property at 132c and 33 Roberts Street for office space as well as 17 and
25 Roberts Street for a parking lot. Total lease payments expensed for the year were $ 75,837. The
operating leases are annual agreements, and the Town does not expect significant variation from
the annual amounts in future years.

(h) Revenue Recognition

Taxation revenues are recognized at the time of issuing the property tax notices for the fiscal year.
Fees and charges revenue are recognized when the services are rendered. Investment income is
accrued as earned. Gain on foreign exchange has been recognized in the Statement of Operations
using the exchange rate in effect on December 31, 2015.

Other revenues are recognized when earned in accordance with the terms of the agreement, when
the amounts are measurable and when collection is reasonably assured.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Town recognizes a government transfer as revenue when the transfer is authorized and all
eligibility criteria, if any, have been met. Grants and donations are recognized in the financial
statements in the period which the events giving rise to the transfer occur, eligibility criteria are met,
and reasonable estimates of the amount can be made. A government transfer with stipulations
giving rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability is recognized as a liability (deferred
revenue). In such circumstances, the Town recognizes the revenue as the liability is settled.

Deferred revenue represents user charges and other fees which have been collected, for which the
related services have yet to be provided. These amounts will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year the services are provided.

(i) Non-financial Assets

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets during the
year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net financial
assets for the year.

() Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, determined on an average cost
basis.

(k) Liability for contaminated sites

A liability for remediation of a contaminated site is recognized at the best estimate of the amount
required to remediate the contaminated site when contamination exceeding an environmental
standard exists, the Town of Ladysmith is either directly responsible or accepts responsibility, it is
expected that future economic benefits will be given up, and a reasonable estimate of the amount is
determinable. The best estimate of the liability includes all costs directly attributable to remediation
activities and is reduced by expected net recoveries based on information available at December 31,
2015.

The Town has determined that no owned properties meet the criteria to recognize a liability for
contaminated sites.

At each financial reporting date, the Town of Ladysmith reviews the carrying amount of the liability.
Any revisions required to the amount previously recognized is accounted for in the period revisions
are made. If applicable, the Town of Ladysmith will recognize the liability until it is settled or
otherwise extinguished. Disbursements made to settle the liability are deducted from the reported
liability when they are made.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() Recent Accounting Pronouncements
PS 2200 Related Party Disclosures

In March 2015, as part of the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Revisions Release
No. 42, the Public Sector Accounting Board issued a new standard, PS 2200 Related Party
Disclosures.

This new Section defines related party and established disclosures required for related party
transactions. Disclosure of information about related party transactions and the relationship
underlying them is required when they have occurred at a value different from that which would have
been arrived at if the parties were unrelated, and they have, or could have, a material financial effect
on the financial statements.

This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PS 3210 Assets

In June 2015, new PS 3210 Assets was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting
Handbook. The new Section provides guidance for applying the definition of assets set out in PS
1000 Financial Statement Concepts. The main features of this standard are as follows:

Assets are defined as economic resources controlled by a government as a result of past
transactions or events and from which future economic benefits are expected to be obtained.

Economic resources can arise from such events as agreements, contracts, other government’'s
legislation, the government’s own legislation, and voluntary contributions.

The public is often the beneficiary of goods and services provided by a public sector entity. Such
assets benefit public sector entities as they assist in achieving the entity's primary objective of
providing public goods and services.

A public sector entity’s ability to regulate an economic resource does not, in and of itself, constitute
control of an asset, if the interest extends only to the regulatory use of the economic resource and
does not include the ability to control access to future economic benefits.

A public sector entity acting as a trustee on behalf of beneficiaries specified in an agreement or
statute is merely administering the assets, and does not control the assets, as future economic
benefits flow to the beneficiaries.

An economic resource may meet the definition of an asset, but would not be recognized if there is
no appropriate basis for measurement and a reasonable estimate cannot be made, or if another
Handbook Section prohibits its recognition. Information about assets not recognized should be
disclosed in the notes.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is
permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PS 3320 Contingent Assets

In June 2015, new PS 3320 Contingent Assets was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector
Accounting Handbook. The new Section establishes disclosure standards on contingent assets. The
main features of this Standard are as follows:

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving
uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events not wholly
within the public sector entity's control occurs or fails to occur. Resolution of the uncertainty will
confirm the existence or non-existence of an asset.

Passing legislation that has retroactive application after the financial statement date cannot create
an existing condition or situation at the financial statement date.

Elected or public sector entity officials announcing public sector entity intentions after the financial
statement date cannot create an existing condition or situation at the financial statement date.

Disclosures should include existence, nature, and extent of contingent assets, as well as the
reasons for any non-disclosure of extent, and the bases for any estimates of extent made.

When a reasonable estimate can be made, disclosure should include a best estimate and a range of
possible amounts (or a narrower range of more likely amounts), unless such a disclosure would
have an adverse impact on the outcome.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is
permitted. The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

PS 3380 Contractual Rights

In June 2015, new PS 3380 Contractual Rights was included in the CPA Canada Public Sector
Accounting Handbook. This new Section establishes disclosure standards on contractual rights, and
does not include contractual rights to exchange assets where revenue does not arise. The main
features of this Standard are as follows:

Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will
result in both an asset and revenue in the future.

Until a transaction or event occurs under a contract or agreement, an entity only has a contractual

right to an economic resource. Once the entity has received an asset, it no longer has a contractual
right.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Contractual rights are distinct from contingent assets as there is no uncertainty related to the
existence of the contractual right.

Disclosures should include descriptions about nature, extent, and timing.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2017. Earlier adoption is
permitted.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions

In June 2015, new PS 3430 Restructuring Transactions was included in the CPA Canada Public
Sector Accounting Handbook. The new Section establishes disclosure standards on contingent
assets. The main features of this Standard are as follows:

A restructuring transaction is defined separately from an acquisition. The key distinction between the
two is the absence of an exchange of consideration in a restructuring transaction.

A restructuring transaction is defined as a transfer of an integrated set of assets and/or liabilities,
together with related program or operating responsibilities that does not involve an exchange of
consideration.

Individual assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring transaction are derecognized by the
transferor at their carrying amount and recognized by the recipient at their carrying amount with
applicable adjustments.

The increase in net assets or net liabilities resulting from recognition and derecognition of individual
assets and liabilities received from all transferors, and transferred to all recipients in a restructuring
transaction, is recognized as revenue or as an expense.

Restructuring-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.

Individual assets and liabilities received in a restructuring transaction are initially classified based on
the accounting policies and circumstances of the recipient at the restructuring date.

The financial position and results of operations prior to the restructuring date are not restated.
Disclosure of information about the transferred assets, liabilities and related operations prior to the
restructuring date by the recipient is encouraged but not required.

The Section is effective for new restructuring transactions that occur in fiscal periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.

The Town does not expect application of the new Standard to have a material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3. Cash and Short Term Deposits

Cash and short term deposits were comprised as follows:

2015 2014
Cash $ 12,886,680 $ 12,030,766
Short term deposits 766,618 760,124

$ 13,653,298 $ 12,790,890

Included in Cash is a deposit of $1,157,870 (the equivalent of $852,854 US Funds based on the
exchange rate at the Ladysmith and District Credit Union on December 31, 2015). Short term deposits
consist of short term investments in the Municipal Finance Authority of B.C. money market fund. The
market value is equal to the carrying value.

Included in cash and short term deposits are the following restricted amounts that can only be
expended in accordance with the terms of the restricted reserves.

2015 2014
Restricted reserves - other $ 490,270 $ 480,150
Federal gas tax reserve 1,060,650 976,699
Development cost charges reserve 1,769,872 1,477,171
Total restricted cash $ 3,320,793 $ 2,934,020

4, Accounts Receivable

2015 2014
Property taxes $ 1,243,983 $ 1,277,401
Other government 1,031,001 2,258,560
User fees and other 631,823 615,204
Developer receivables 16,253 16,253
Employee receivables 11,177 8,369

$ 2,934,237 $ 4,175,786

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

2015 2014
General $ 1,007,433 $ 1,284,364
Other governments 1,151 1,039
Salaries and wages 194,764 188,300
Contractor holdbacks 786,222 219,448
Accrued interest 40,923 40,923
$ 2,030,493 $ 1,734,074

Post-Employment Benefits

The Town provides compensated absences to its employees to a maximum of 120 days. The Town
also allows employees to defer unused vacation without any maximum. Any deferred vacation time
remaining at retirement or termination is paid out at that time. The amount recorded for these benefits
is based on an actuarial evaluation done by an independent firm using a projected benefit actuarial
valuation method prorated on services. The last actuarial valuation was calculated at August 31, 2014
and has been extrapolated to December 31, 2015. The change in the liability in the financial

statements in respect of obligations under the plan amounts to $8,300. ($50,400 - 2014).

The accrued post-employment benefits are as follows:

2015 2014
Balance, beginning of year $ 276,300 $ 225,900
Current service costs 30,400 29,200
Benefits paid (32,700) (13,700)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (6,000) 34,900
Balance, end of year $ 268,000 $ 276,300

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Town’s post-employment benefits are

as follows:

2015 2014
Discount Rate 3.10% 3.10%
Expected Inflation Rate and Wage & Salary Increases 2.50% 2.50%

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Deferred Revenue

Licence fees & charges

Rental payments

Prepaid property tax
Subdivision tree prepayment
Recreation prepayment

Utilities
Other

Refundable Deposits and Other

Developer performance deposits
Damage deposits

Other

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2015 2014
6,133 5,961
589 37,957
243,115 163,609
45,604 35,105
32,399 26,928
26,249 26,102
14,759 15,396
368,849 311,057
2015 2014
212,120 159,780
179,400 173,550
200 200
391,720 333,530




TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Restricted Reserves and Development Cost Charges Reserve

Restricted reserves include Development Cost Charges (DCC'’s) which are charged to developers and
utilized for infrastructure development. There are two reserves, LRC Capital and B&G Capital for the
replacement of specific building components located at 630 2" Avenue and 220 High Street.

Balance Balance

Description Dec. 31, 2014 Interest Contributions Expenditures Dec. 31, 2015
DCC - Water $ 258,136 $ 3,134 $ 141,386 $ - $ 402,656
DCC - Parks 270,463 2,682 45,360 - 318,504
DCC - Roads 431,985 3,923 96,180 (108,075) 424,013
DCC - Sewer 176,721 1,826 95,377 - 273,925
DCC - Storm 339,867 3,287 7,620 - 350,774
1,477,171 14,853 385,924 (108,075) 1,769,872
Parking 72,304 694 - - 72,998
Green Streets 1,427 14 - - 1,441
Amphitheatre 14,725 146 1,200 - 16,071
LRC - Capital 369,197 283 2,480 - 371,960
B&G - Capital 22,497 240 5,064 - 27,801
480,150 1,377 8,744 - 490,270
TOTAL $ 1,957,321 $ 16,229 $ 394,667 $ (108,075) $ 2,260,142

Financial Instruments

The Town as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's
opinion the Town is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these
financial instruments, except as otherwise disclosed. The Town is exposed to currency risk on its US
dollar bank account, as described in Note 3. Unless otherwise noted, the fair value of these financial
instruments approximates their carrying values.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Federal Gas Tax Reserve

Gas Tax funding is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of the funding is established by a
funding agreement between the Town and the Union of British Columbia Municipalities. Gas Tax
funding may be used towards designated public transit, community energy, water, wastewater, solid
waste and capacity building projects, as specified in the funding agreements. The funds are recorded
on the financial statements as a restricted reserve.

2015 2014
Opening balance of unspent funds $ 976,699 $ 854,988
Add: Amounts received during the year 374,048 374,048
Interest earned 9,265 9,347
Less: Gas tax funds utilized (299,363) (261,684)
Closing balance of unspent funds $ 1,060,650 $ 976,699

Obligations under Capital Lease

There are six leases payable to the Municipal Finance Authority. The future minimum lease
payments, including PST, under the capital lease obligation are as follows:

2016 $ 61,317
2017 48,872
2018 332,139
2019 3,379
2020 -
Thereafter -

Debt interest, less actuarial adjustments in the consolidated statement of financial activities, is
calculated as $8,673 ($10,812 - 2014).

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Obligations under Capital Lease (continued)

The Town has entered into capital leases for the following purchases:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on August 2011 for the purchase of a Photocopier. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $329 including interest at 1.70% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in obligation
under capital leases, is $2,416. Lease to expire July 2016. ($6,559 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on April 2012 for the purchase of a 4X4 fire truck. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $1,381 including interest at 1.70%
per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $24,752. Lease to expire May 2017. ($41,870 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on June 2012 for the purchase of a photocopier. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $111 including interest at 1.70% per
annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in obligation
under capital leases, is $2,212. Lease to expire July 2017. ($3,587 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on March 28, 2013 for the purchase of a fire truck. The remaining obligation
will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $2,718 including interest at 1.70%
per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $378,241. Lease to expire March 2018. ($406,075 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on February 2, 2014 for the purchase of a photocopier. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $147 including interest at
1.70% per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $5,781. Lease to expire February 2019. ($7,546 - 2014)

A five year capital lease agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
which commenced on April 25, 2014 for the purchase of fithess equipment. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly lease payments in the amount of $782 including interest at
1.70% per annum. The balance of the capital lease at December 31, 2015, which is included in
obligation under capital leases, is $32,305. Lease to expire April 2019. ($41,678 - 2014)

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Equipment Financing

A new five year equipment financing agreement with the Municipal Finance Authority of British
Columbia commenced on September 28, 2015 for the financing of a fire truck. The remaining
obligation will be repaid with monthly payments in the amount of $776 including interest at 1.24%
per annum. The balance of the loan at December 31, 2015 is $42,952. Loan to expire September
30, 2020.

The future minimum principal payments are:

2016 $ 8,769
2017 8,889
2018 9,015
2019 9,143
2020 7,136
Thereafter -

Short-Term Debt

The Town executed short term borrowing of $4,000,000 to construct the upgrade of the Waste
Water Treatment Plant. An additional $3,000,000 was executed in 2016.

The Town also executed short term borrowing of $920,000 to purchase the properties at 12, 20, and
26 Buller Street and 721 First Avenue.

Principal Payments payable over the next five years:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Waste Water Treatment Plant $4,000,000

Buller Street Properties - - - - $ 920,000

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Debenture Debt

The total long term debt issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2015 was $2,976,232
($3,231,518 as at December 31, 2014). There is an additional $10 million dollars authorized to fund
the upgrade of the Waste Water Treatment Plant.

The following principal amounts are payable over the next five years.

Principal repayments

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereatfter
General $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 66,033 $ 726,362
Water 24,012 24,012 24,012 24,012 24,012 408,204

Sewer - - - - - -
$ 90,045 $ 90,045 $ 90,045 $ 90,045 $ 90,045 $ 1,134,566

Actuarial sinking fund earnings

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter
General $ 27,953 $ 31,712 $ 35622 $ 39,688 $ 43,917 $ 815,770
Water 2,998 4,078 5,202 6,371 7,586 370,544

Sewer - - - - - -
$ 30,951 $ 35790 $ 40,824 $ 46,059 $ 51,503 $ 1,186,314

$120,996 $125,835 $130,869 $136,104 $141,548  $2,320,880

Debt interest, less actuarial adjustments in the consolidated statement of financial activities, is
determined as follows:

Actuarial
Interest Adjustment 2015 Net 2014 Net
General - Interest $ 219463 $ 83,177 $ 136,286 $ 145,380
Water - Interest 34,000 1,959 32,041 33,040
Sewer - Interest 725 3,826 (3,101) (1,263)

$ 254,188 $ 88,962 $ 165226 $ 177,156

Commitments and Contingencies
(&) Contingent Liabilities

i) The Town, as a member of the Cowichan Valley Regional District, is jointly and severally liable
for operational deficits or long term debt related to functions in which it participates.

i) The loan agreements with the Municipal Finance Authority provide that if the Authority does not
have sufficient funds to meet payments on its obligations it shall make payments from the Debt
Reserve Fund which in turn is established by a similar Debt Reserve Fund in the Town and all
other borrowing participants. If the Debt Reserve Fund is deficient the Authority's obligations
become a liability of the regional district and may become a liability of the participating
municipalities.

iii) Various claims have been made against the Town as at December 31, 2015for incidents which
arose in the ordinary course of operations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

96"



16.

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

(b)

()

outcomes of the lawsuits, now pending, are not determinable. As the outcomes are not
determinable at this time, no amount has been accrued in the financial statements. Should any
loss result from the resolution of these claims, such loss will be charged to operations in the year
of resolution.

Pension Liability

The employer and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed
pension plan). The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible
for administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The
Plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a
formula. As at December 31, 2014, the Plan has about 185,000 active members and
approximately 80,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 37,000
contributors from local governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and
member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’s calculated contribution rate is based
on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and
employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This
rate is then adjusted to the extent there is amortization of any funding deficit.

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as of December 31, 2012, indicated a
$1.37 billion funding deficit for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2015, with results available in 2016.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate,
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
individual employers participating in the plan.

The Town of Ladysmith paid $430,067 (2014 - $408,683) for employer contributions to the Plan
in fiscal 2015.

Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement

The Town is a subscribed member of the Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia
(The "Exchange") as provided by Section 3.02 of the Insurance Act of the Province of British
Columbia. The main purpose of the Exchange is to pool the risks of liability so as to lessen the
impact upon any subscriber. Under the Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement the Town is
assessed a premium and specific deductible for its claims based on population. The obligation
of the Town with respect to the Exchange and/or contracts and obligations entered into by the
Exchange on behalf of its subscribers in connection with the Exchange are in every case
several, and not joint and several. The Town irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes and
agrees to indemnify and save harmless the other subscribers against liability losses and costs
which the other subscriber may suffer.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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17. Significant Taxpayers

The Town is reliant upon 10 taxpayers for approximately 20.72% (21.19% - 2014) of the total
property tax revenue which includes Western Forest Products at approximately 12.6% (13.1% -
2014) of the total property tax revenue.

18. Funds Held in Trust

These funds account for assets which must be administered as directed by agreement or statute for
certain beneficiaries; in particular, these funds are for the Cemetery Trust Fund. In accordance with
PSAB recommendations on financial statement presentation, trust funds are not included in the
Town's Financial Statements. A summary of trust fund activities by the Town is as follows:

2015 2014

Assets

Cash and short term investment $ 147,252 $ 143,932
Equity

Opening balance $ 143,932 $ 141,707
Interest 1,474 1,583
Transfer interest to fund cemetery costs (1,474) (1,583)
Contributions 3,320 2,225
Balance, end of year $ 147,252 $ 143,932

19. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

20. Accumulated Surplus

The Town segregates its accumulated surplus in the following categories:

2015 2014
(Restated)
Unappropriated equity $ 3,733,297 $ 3,301,039
Appropriated equity (Schedule VI) 5,612,326 7,307,629
9,345,623 10,608,668
Capital Funds
General capital fund 127,404 113,288
Sewer capital fund 17,419 834
Water capital fund 612,520 595,935
757,344 710,057
Reserve Funds
Reserve funds (Schedule VI) 286,847 235,633
Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 80,790,552 76,373,114
Total Accumulated Surplus $ 91,180,366 $ 87,927,472

21. Annual Budget
Fiscal plan amounts represent the Financial Plan Bylaw adopted by Council on May 11, 2015.
The Financial Plan anticipated the use of surpluses accumulated in previous years to balance
against current year expenses in excess of current year revenues. In addition, the Financial Plan

anticipated capital expenses rather than amortization expense.

The following shows how these amounts were combined:

Financial Plan Balance for the year $ -
Add back:
Amortization (2,485,372)
Proceeds from new debt (9,800,000)
Transfers to/from own funds (1,140,829)
Less:
Principal payments on debt 477,120
Capital expenditures per budget 17,448,403
Capital Expenditures expensed according to Tangible Capital Asset Policy (790,920)
Adjusted Annual Surplus $ 3,708,402

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

DL 2016 Holdings Corporation (“DL 2016")

The Town of Ladysmith has an investment in DL 2016 Holdings Corporation, a wholly owned
subsidiary company of the Town.

The Town of Ladysmith leases portions of its waterfront from the Province of British Columbia parts
of which are subleased to DL 2016 for use as a marina.

DL 2016 has entered into operation and maintenance agreement and a license agreement with the
Ladysmith Maritime Society (LMS) for the operation and management of the lease area.

Pursuant to these agreements DL 2016 could provide security for debt financing in order for LMS to
implement capital improvements to the lease area.

Segmented Information

The Town is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of services to
its citizens such as roads, water, sewer and drainage infrastructure, fire protection, police protection
(RCMP), cemetery, recreation centre, garbage collection and parkland. Distinguishable functional
segments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the
segments and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government Services

The City Manager is the liaison between Council and the Town departments and staff. The
Corporate Services Department supports the legislated activities of Council, and provides
information to citizens with respect to Council/Committee processes, reporting procedures and
decisions, and Town activities. Also included in General Government Services is the Finance
Department, Information Technology and Human Resources.

Protective Services

Protection is comprised of fire protection, policing, bylaw enforcement and building inspection.

e Bylaw enforcement administers, monitors, and seeks compliance with the bylaws enacted
by the Mayor and Council to regulate the conduct of affairs in the Town of Ladysmith.

e Fire protection is provided by the fire department, whose volunteer members receive
compensation for each callout in which they take part.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Segmented Information (Continued)

Policing is provided under contract with the RCMP operating from a detachment building
located in and owned by the Town of Ladysmith.

The Town of Ladysmith’'s Development Services and Public Works Departments work
together to regulate all construction within the Town. This is achieved through the use of the
Town of Ladysmith’s Building and Plumbing Bylaw, the British Columbia Building Code, the
British Columbia Fire Code and other related bylaws and enactments with the Town of
Ladysmith.

Transportation, Garbage and Cemetery

The Transportation (Public Works) Department is responsible for the infrastructure of the Town:

Ensuring clean and safe water to the Town, supplied through underground pipes and
reservoirs,

Maintaining a separate system of underground pipes to collect sewer or waste water for
proper treatment prior to discharging it,

Providing and maintaining the Town'’s roads, sidewalks, street lights, signage and line
markings, storm drainage and hydrants,

Providing other key services including street cleaning and the operation of a local bus
service.

Garbage Services (Public Works) is responsible for the garbage collection and compost and
recycling programs operating in the Town of Ladysmith. Garbage and recycling collection is
performed by a contractor.

Cemetery (Public Works) Department provides cemetery services including the maintenance of the
cemetery grounds.

Development

The Development Services Department provides short-term and long-term land use planning
services.

Long-term Planning includes work with the community on reviewing the Town’s Official
Community Plan, developing new Neighbourhood Plans, the Trail Plan and the review of
relevant bylaws.

Short term Planning includes the processing of development applications.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Segmented Information (Continued)

Recreation and Culture

The Parks, Recreation and Culture Department contribute to the quality of life and personal wellness
of the community through the provision of a variety of special events, programs, services and
facilities. The Frank Jameson Community Centre is the location where the majority of the programs
are offered.

Parks

Parks includes and provides maintenance of beach area, trails, golf course, spray-park, ball parks,
and any other civic grounds.

Water

Water includes all of the operating activities related to the treatment and distribution of water
throughout the Town.

Sewer

Sewer includes all of the operating activities related to the collection and treatment of waste water
(sewage) throughout the Town.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year end, the Town borrowed an additional $3,000,000 for a total of $7,000,000 of
the approved $10,000,000 loan through the Municipal Finance Authority for the construction of the
third phase of the wastewater treatment plant.

Changes in Accounting Policies

PS 3260 Liabilities for Contaminated Sites

Effective January 1, 2015, the Town of Ladysmith adopted the recommendations in PS 3260
Liabilities for Contaminated Sites, as set out in the Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Pursuant to the recommendations, the change was applied prospectively, and prior periods have not
been restated.

Previously, no accounting policy existed to account for a liability for contaminated sites. Under the
new recommendations, the Town of Ladysmith is required to recognize a liability for contaminated
sites when economic benefits will be given up, as described in Note 2 (k), Significant Accounting
Policies.

There was no effect on the Town'’s financial statements from adopting the above-noted change in
accounting policy.

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Spartan Fire Truck
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE |
Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
Term Amount  Dec 31,2014 Payments Interest® Dec 31,2015 Rate
2010-15 $ 312,258 $ 51,091 $ 51,091 $ 618 $ - 1.70%
2011-16 19,780 6,559 4,143 79 $ 2,416 1.70%
2012-17 83,652 41,870 17,118 575 $ 24,752 1.70%
2013-18 452,066 406,075 27,834 6,608 $ 378,241 1.70%
2012-17 6,748 3,587 1,375 50 $ 2,212 1.70%
2014-19 8,967 7,546 1,765 113 $ 5,781 1.70%
2014-19 47,765 41,678 9,373 630 $ 32,305 1.70%
$ 931,236 $ 558406 $ 112698 $ 8673 $ 445,707

W Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF SHORT TERM DEBT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE I
Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
Term Amount Dec 31,2014 Payments Interest @ pec 31, 2015 Rate
General Capital Fund
2015 Buller Street Properties 5 years $ 920,000 $ - $ - $ 5318 $ 920,000 1.30%
Sewer Capital Fund
2015 Waste Water Treatment Plant 5 years 4,000,000 - - 22,564 4,000,000 1.30%
$ 4,920,000 $ - 0% - $ 27,881 $ 4,920,000

@ Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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General Capital Fund

2000 First Avenue

2006 RCMP Building

Water Capital Fund

2012 Water Improvements

Sewer Capital Fund

2000 Sewer Improvements

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF DEBENTURE DEBT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE 11l

Issue Original Balance Principal Net Balance Interest
# Term Amount Dec 31,2014 Payments Interest® Dec 31, 2015 Rate
73 2000-15 $ 1,438,000 $ 130,462 $ 130,462 $ 32,474 $ - 6.35%
97 2006-31 2,750,000 2,141,558 90,371 103,812 2,051,187 4.66%
118 2012-37 1,000,000 951,016 25,971 32,041 925,044 3.40%
72 2000-15 93,500 8,483 8,483 (3,101) - 6.45%

$ 5281500 $ 3,231,518 $ 255287 $ 165226 $ 2,976,232

@ Interest, net of actuarial adjustments
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF TAX REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE IV
Actuals Budget Actuals
2015 2015 2014
General Taxes
General municipal purposes $ 7,456,243 $ 7,458,863 $ 7,022,129
Grants in lieu and 1% utility tax 165,762 164,115 165,983
Water and sewer parcel tax 1,542,125 1,539,493 1,431,141

$ 9,164,130 $ 9,162,471 $ 8,619,254

Collections for other governments:

School district $ 2,993,017 $ 2,990,048 $ 3,028,714
Regional hospital district 694,246 693,237 642,775
Regional district 1,139,643 1,138,082 1,018,087
BCAA and MFA 82,205 82,122 85,103
Library 340,973 341,052 328,044

$ 5,250,083 $ 5,244,541 $ 5,102,722

Less:
Transmission of taxes levied for other agencies:
School district $ 2,993,017 $ 2,990,048 $ 3,028,714
Regional hospital district 694,246 693,237 642,775
Regional district 1,139,643 1,138,082 1,018,087
BCAA and MFA 82,205 82,122 85,103
Library 340,973 341,052 328,044
$ 5,250,083 $ 5,244,541 $ 5,102,722
Net Taxation $ 9,164,130 $ 9,162,471 $ 8,619,254
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Licences and fines

Garbage services

General government services
Cemetery services
Recreation services

Permits and Fees

Protective Services

Water Utility Fees

Sewer Utility Fees

TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF FEES & CHARGES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE V
Actuals Budget Actuals
2015 2015 2014

$ 85,957 $ 79,650 $ 81,540
638,647 621,750 595,863
110,514 77,773 124,753
33,095 30,072 27,630
674,765 632,242 599,304
116,344 78,900 72,197
235,418 238,067 234,511
713,268 765,290 713,777
791,347 767,278 741,877

$ 3,399,355 $ 3,291,022 $ 3,191,452
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONTINUITY SCHEDULE OF RESERVES & APPROPRIATED EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

RESERVES
Tax Sale
Perpetual Safety Fund
Sale Real Property
Municipal Office Building
Amenity Funds

TOTAL RESERVES

APPROPRIATED EQUITY - OPERATIONS
General Operating Fund

Future Projects

Equipment

Land & Building

Tax Contingency

Snow & Ice Removal

Infrastructure Deficit

Multi-Materials BC Rebate

Water Operating Fund
Capital Expenditures
MFA Surplus Refunds

Total Water Operating Fund

Sewer Operating Fund
Capital Expenditures
MFA Surplus Refunds

Total Sewer Operating Fund

TOTAL APPROPRIATED EQUITY

TOTAL RESERVES AND APPROPRIATED EQUITY $

SCHEDULE VI

(Unaudited)

Restated
Balance Interest Balance

Dec. 31, 2014 Allocated Contributions Funding Dec. 31, 2015
$ 25430 $ 264 $ - - $ 25,694
12,654 132 - - 12,786
115,000 60,000 - 175,000
82,549 818 - 10,000 73,367
$ 235,633 $ 1214 $ 60,000 10,000 $ 286,847
1,135,134 691,679 270,964 1,555,849
788,967 328,070 153,683 963,354
71,235 157,360 14,200 214,395
107,986 - 100,000 7,986
30,000 - - 30,000
140,140 178,039 - 318,179
60,800 89,040 3,127 146,713
2,334,262 1,444,188 541,974 3,236,476
778,003 151,450 125,545 803,908
524,076 - - 524,076
1,302,079 151,450 125,545 1,327,984
3,064,935 784,996 3,414,009 435,922
606,353 5,591 - 611,944
3,671,288 790,587 3,414,009 1,047,866
$ 7,307,629 $ $ 2,386,225 4,081,528 $ 5,612,326
7,543,262 $ 1214 % 2,446,225 4,091,528 $ 5,899,173
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED RESERVES, RESERVES & EQUITY BY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE VI

(Unaudited)

Restricted Allocated  Appropriated Unappropriated Capital Funds

Reserves Reserves Equity Equity Equity Total
General operating fund $ - $ - $ 3,236,476 $ 875,140 $ - $ 4,111,616
W ater operating fund - - 1,327,984 511,306 - 1,839,290
Sewer operating fund - - 1,047,866 2,346,851 - 3,394,717
Reserve fund 490,270 286,847 - - - 777,118
General capital fund - - - - 127,404 127,404
Water capital fund - - - - 612,520 612,520
Sewer capital fund - - - - 17,419 17,419
Total $ 490,270 286,847 $ 5,612,326 $ 3,733,297 $ 757,344 $ 10,880,085
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

SCHEDULE OF GRANT REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE Vil
Actuals Budget Actuals
2015 2015 2014
Operating Grants
Traffic Fines Revenue $ 54,572 43,000 $ 31,650
Small Communities 472,265 450,000 295,191
CVRD Recreation 126,890 125,545 125,545
Other 31,728 11,865 16,138
685,455 630,410 468,524
Capital Grants

Composting Facility $ - 500,000 $ -

Energy and Facility Assessment - 10,000 -
Frank Jameson Energy Upgrades - - 353,021

ICBC Sign Incentive 14,830 - -

Signage Initiative - 8,400 -
Stz uminus First Nation Cooperation Protocol 3,849 9,000 19,037

Transfer Beach Parking Lot Railing 6,000 6,000 -

Upper Transfer Beach Improvements - 6,000 -
Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 1,824,661 3,110,709 2,640,221

Waterfront Area Plan - 50,000 -
Zoning Bylaw - - 23,660
1,849,340 3,700,109 3,035,939
$ 2,534,795 4,330,519 $ 3,504,463
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REVENUE

Tax

Fees & Charges

Investment income & MFA Refunds
Penalty & Interest on tax

Grants

Donations & contributed property
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange
Gain (loss) on disposal
Development fees

Local area improvements

Gas tax fund utilized

Total revenue

EXPENSES
Contracted Senices
Grants In Aid
Insurance

Interest

Materials & Supplies
Utilities & Telephone
Wages & Benefits
Other

Amortization

Total expenses

Surplus (Deficit)

TOWN OF LADYSMITH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE IX
Transportation,
General Protective Garbage & Cemetery Development
Government Services Services Services
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

$ 7,622,005 $ 7,188,113 - - - - - -
43,014 61,945 400,413 323,687 635,876 632,516 102,522 62,561
176,832 127,922 - - - - - -
123,546 123,987 - - - - - -
477,748 312,515 54,572 31,650 23,194 8,836 8,436 24,091

- - - - 48,790 107,082 - 14,327
131,994 95,762 - - - - - -
153,676 (5,000) - - (20,861) (7,281) - -

- - - - 108,075 108,075 - 3,550

- - - - 132,702 63,000 - -
8,728,816 7,905,242 454,985 355,337 927,776 912,228 110,958 104,529
412,266 268,542 1,034,050 982,236 633,798 580,734 123,103 182,456
100,250 98,156 11,000 11,000 - - - -
57,060 63,494 24,803 25,650 3,304 7,756 1,360 -
5,397 164 111,766 117,144 32,524 38,172 - -
36,567 34,475 80,549 63,294 141,790 119,298 6,103 7,049
18,203 18,662 47,739 46,967 136,773 144,910 6,639 6,160
1,537,277 1,432,762 383,637 345,527 701,923 810,731 366,143 359,036
(103,477) 134,334 43,996 44,146 (16,192) 108,629 13,038 6,198
206,529 190,066 164,024 169,332 844,004 841,019 - -
2,270,072 2,240,654 1,901,564 1,805,295 2,477,923 2,651,249 516,386 560,899
$ 6,458,744 $ 5,664,588 $ (1,446,579) $ (1,449,958) $ (1,550,147) $ (1,739,021) $ (405,428) $ (456,370)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE IX -CONTINUED

Recreation & Culture Parks Operations Sewer Operations Water Operations Total Total

Services Services Services Services Actual Actual

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
- - - - $ 964,365 $ 962,751 $ 577,760 $ 468,390 $ 9,164,130 $ 8,619,254
712,913 655,089 - - 791,347 741,877 713,268 713,777 3,399,353 3,191,452
- - - - 2,920 - - 2,772 179,752 130,693
- - - - - - - - 123,546 123,987
141,184 487,151 5,000 - 1,824,661 2,640,221 - - 2,534,795 3,504,463
73,711 10,500 110,963 8,000 - - 8,450 3,133 241,914 143,043
- - - - - - - - 131,994 95,762
- (23,549) - - 16,585 - 15,560 - 164,961 (35,830)
- - - - - - - - 108,075 111,625
- - - - - 8,922 - - - 8,922
10,777 192,674 155,885 6,011 - - - - 299,363 261,684
938,585 1,321,864 271,847 14,011 3,599,878 4,353,771 1,315,038 1,188,072 16,347,884 16,155,054
146,226 123,047 41,747 25,128 106,434 93,091 335,078 193,539 2,832,702 2,448,773
- - - - - - - - 111,250 109,156
35,037 43,087 5,478 - 12,329 13,899 3,861 4,353 143,232 158,239
743 712 - - 19,462 (1,263) 32,041 33,040 201,933 187,968
131,336 105,344 100,537 85,655 109,228 97,799 86,797 36,198 692,907 549,112
138,627 138,689 5,014 11,569 60,850 59,659 11,628 8,643 425,473 435,259
1,626,835 1,638,725 384,944 373,228 358,628 318,913 394,910 348,105 5,754,297 5,627,026
81,302 74,975 99,159 89,106 163,158 50,624 140,056 27,447 421,040 535,459
227,632 218,246 257,448 251,408 444,265 441,733 368,255 324,244 2,512,157 2,436,048
2,387,738 2,342,825 894,327 836,094 1,274,354 1,074,455 1,372,626 975,569 13,094,990 12,487,040
$ (1,449,153) $ (1,020,961) $ (622,479) $ (822,083) $ 2,325,524 $ 3,279,316 $ (57,588) $ 212,503 $ 3,252,894 $ 3,668,014
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE X

Land Land Improvements Buildings Vehicle Furniture & Equipment  Transportation
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
COST
Opening Balance $ 8,566,085 $ 8,566,085 $ 7,960,932 $ 7,776,566  $19,684,792 $17,719,021 $ 5705958 $ 5542685 $ 25,876,555
Add: Additions 716,098 - 172,298 184,366 457,394 1,988,628 599,622 230,549 315,628
Less: Disposals - - 14,582 - - 22,857 210,986 67,276 20,613
Less: Write-downs - - - - - - - - -
Closing Balance 9,282,183 8,566,085 8,118,648 7,960,932 20,142,186 19,684,792 6,094,594 5,705,958 26,171,570
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Opening Balance - - 2,528,342 2,298,880 4,458,227 3,970,876 3,343,537 3,129,672 13,543,624
Add: Amortization - - 229,546 229,462 535,958 492,230 277,599 271,507 633,515
Less: Write-downs - - - - - - - - -
Less: Disposals - - 14,582 - - 4,879 177,309 57,642 20,461
Closing Balance - - 2,743,306 2,528,342 4,994,185 4,458,227 3,443,827 3,343,537 14,156,678
Net Book Value $ 9,282,183 $ 8,566,085 $ 5,375,342 $ 5,432,590  $15,148,001 $15,226,565 $ 2,650,767 $ 2,362,421 $ 12,014,892

Included in the tangible capital assets are leased and financed assets with a total cost of $931,236 - (2014 - $931,236) and accumulated amortization of

$185,490 - (2014 - $144,607)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE X - CONTINUED

Linear Infrastructure

Transportation Sanitary Sewer Storm Water Assets Under Construction Total

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
$ 25543,068 $ 19,996,796 $ 19,996,796 $ 8,123,714 $ 7,938,726  $16,374,424 $15,908,724 $ 3,755,487 $ 2,395,942  $116,044,743 $111,387,613
333,487 56,962 - 70,422 201,939 80,015 465,700 9,123,785 2,734,450 11,592,224 6,139,119
- - - 1,020 16,951 3,989 - 33,024 1,374,905 284,214 1,481,989
25,876,555 20,053,758 19,996,796 8,193,116 8,123,714 16,450,450 16,374,424 12,846,248 3,755,487 127,352,752 116,044,743
12,935,018 5,719,947 5,286,007 1,974,264 1,869,229 4,313,218 4,020,252 - - 35,881,159 33,509,934
608,606 427,006 433,940 109,782 107,634 298,751 292,966 - - 2,512,157 2,436,345
- - - 689 2,599 2,964 - - - 216,005 65,120
13,543,624 6,146,953 5,719,947 2,083,357 1,974,264 4,609,005 4,313,218 - - 38,177,311 35,881,159
$ 12,332,931 $ 13,906,805 $ 14,276,849  $ 6,109,759 $ 6,149,450  $11,841,445 $12,061,206 $ 12,846,248 $ 3,755,487 $ 89,175,441 $ 80,163,584
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE OF DEBTS

Information on all long-term debts for this organization is included in Schedules I, Il & Il to the financial
statements.

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE OF GUARANTEE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

The Town of Ladysmith has not given any guarantees or indemnities under the Guarantees and
Indemnities Regulation.

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE OF RENUMERATION AND EXPENSES

Elected Officials, as per Sec. 168 of the Community Charter
As per Sec. 2 - Financial Information Act and Financial Information Regulation 371/93:

NAME POSITION REMUNERATION EXPENSES
Financial Expense
Compensation | Allowance Additional

Stone, Aaron Mayor $ 16,115 | $ 8,057 | $ 3,185
Arnett, Steven Councillor 8,313 4,157 2,808
Fradin, Calvin Councillor 8,313 4,157 2,381
Friesenhan, Joe Councillor 8,313 4,157 619
Henderson, Carol Councillor 8,313 4,157 1,997
Hutchins, Robert Councillor 8,313 4,157 1,700
Paterson, Donald Councillor 8,313 4,157 340
Total Elected Officials $ 65,993 | $ 32999 | $ 13,030

As per Section 2 - Financial Information Act and Financial Information Regulation 371/93:

NAME POSITION REMUNERATION EXPENSES
Adams, Felicity Director of Development Services $127,040 $ 7,968
Anderson, Erin Director of Financial Services 125,548 5,094
Baker, Curtis Utilities 111/Chief Operator 94,948 1,965
Bowden, Sandy Director of Corporate Services 126,287 1,724
Cousins, Karen Manager of Human Resources 101,216 1,688
Fukakusa, Gerald Manager of Accounting Services 97,617 974
Ganderton, Mike Operations Supervisor 78,718 1,265
Goldfuss, Kevin Manager of Operations 108,211 2,076
Larose, Nick Certified Utilities Operator IlI 86,453 322
Malli, Ruth City Manager 190,502 2,851
Manson, John Director of Infrastructure Services 132,074 2,833
Postings, Clayton Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture 125,331 4,426
Slater, Phil Senior Engineer Technologist 77,555 236
Winter, Joanna Manager of Administrative Services 102,582 1,990
Consolidated total of other employees with
remuneration and expenses of $75,000 or less $3,247,359 $ 76,357
Total: Other Employees $ 4,821,442 $ 111,768
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE OF SEVERANCE AGREEMENTS

There were no severance agreements made between the Town of Ladysmith and its non-unionized
employees during fiscal year 2015.

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

Payee

Andrew Sheret Ltd

BC Assessment Authority

BC Concrete Curb & Gutter Inc

BC Hydro & Power Authority

Bl Pure Water (Canada) Inc

Black Press Group Ltd

Cleartech Industries Inc

Coastal Animal Control Services of BC Ltd.
Communication Connection BC Inc (The)
Corix Water Products LP

Cowichan Valley Regional Hospital District
Cowichan Valley Regional District

David Stalker Excavating Ltd

Duall Division Met-Pro Prpct Inc

Enex Fuels

Esc Automation Inc.

Finning (Canada)

FortisBC - Natural Gas

Golder Associates Ltd

Henderson Recreation Equipment Limited
Houle Electric Ltd.

Hub City Paving Ltd

ICBC

Ivory Tower Investments Ltd

Koers & Associates Engineering Ltd
Ladysmith & District Credit Union
Ladysmith Chamber of Commerce
Maxxam Analytics

Medical Services Plan

Metro Motors Ltd

Minister of Finance

Ministry of Small Business And Revenue
MNP LLP

Municipal Finance Authority

Municipal Insurance Association Of BC
Municipal Pension Fund

Nowus Consulting Inc

Opus Daytonknight Consultants Ltd
Pacific Blue Cross

Progressive Waste Solutions Canada Inc
Receiver General

Receiver General For Canada
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Total Payments
54,999
81,979
49,770

332,501
36,015
34,989
48,886
36,750
92,002
79,752

694,194

1,587,812
89,495

280,498
88,716
42,923

436,028
28,258
26,207

152,271
30,110

110,900
35,879
26,806

127,776

920,000
35,648
36,838
70,712

140,631
34,976

500,830
26,681

158,241

132,471

430,067

105,870

572,330

173,765

469,636

269,679

1,097,548



TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

Steve Marshall Ford $ 101,176
Stewart McDannold Stuart 117,941
Sybertech Waste Reduction Ltd. 45,063
Tetra Tech EBA Inc 59,886
Tritech Group Ltd 6,308,876
TRT Contracting Inc O/A Coastal Trucking 27,317
UPS Canada 92,206
US Bank 206,272
Vadim Computer Management Group Ltd 32,784
Van-Isle Aggregates Ltd 33,532
Vancouver Island Regional Library 341,052
Vancouver Island Tree Service Ltd 51,647
Vanderbeken Enterprises Ltd 239,986
Waste'n Watertech Ltd 50,689
Westerra Equipment LP 31,814
Worksafe BC 116,902
World Water Works Inc 1,319,853
Grants Over $25,000:

Ladysmith & District Historical Society 25,000
Ladysmith Resources Centre Association 35,000
Total Payments Over $25,000 19,018,429
Payments Under $25,000 1,781,380
Grants Under $25,000 49,000
Total Payments Made $ 20,848,809

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(7)

120



TOWN OF LADYSMITH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION APPROVAL

The undersigned, as authorized by the Financial Information Regulation, Section 1, subsection 9(2),
approves all the statements and schedules included in this Statement of Financial Information, produced
under the Financial Information Act.

Erin Anderson Aaron Stone
Director of Financial Services Mayor
June 6, 2016 June 6, 2016

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 9.
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

To: Ruth Malli, City Manager
From: Clayton Postings, Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture
, Date: May 31, 2016
LADYSMITH File No:

Re: PARKS. RECREATION AND CULTURE MASTER PLAN

RECOMMENDATION(S):
That Council:
1. Approve the Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan as presented;

2. Direct staff to prepare an implementation schedule for the recommendations outlined in the
Master Plan and proceed with implementing the recommendations, in accordance with the
Financial Plan,

PURPOSE:
The purpose of this staff report is to present Council with the final version of the Parks,
Recreation and Culture Master Plan for approval.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:
Please refer to the Executive Summary section included in the Parks, Recreation and Culture
Master Plan for background and information on the development of the Master Plan.

The Master Plan is a critical document which provides direction to help guide the Parks,
Recreation and Culture Department in its future planning and service delivery.

Once the Plan is approved by Council, staff will have clear direction on the allocation of the
department’s resources, and the community will become more aware of the major initiatives
being undertaken by the Parks, Recreation and Culture Department. It will also enable the Town
to apply for grant funding for various parks, recreation and culture related projects.

It should be noted the Plan is considered a dynamic document and can be amended and
updated at any time in the future as new initiatives are identified, Council can always consider
these at that time and reprioritize the recommendations outlined in the Master Plan.

Please note that the recommendations are not currently funded and Council will need to
consider how the recommendations are to be funded at the appropriate time. Staff will prepare
an implementation schedule to provide some guidance in this regard.

SCOPE OF WORK:

Following approval of the Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan, staff will prepare an
implementation schedule and begin determining the most effective, efficient way to carry out
the recommendations.
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ALTERNATIVES:
Council may receive the Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan and determine next steps at
a future date.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:;

Currently many of the recommendations are not identified in the 2016-2020 financial plan. The
Master Plan recommendations will be presented in future financial plans for consideration by
Council.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
Not applicable.

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:

Extensive public consultation, including interviews, focus groups, surveys, and an open house,
has occurred over the past six months; this community input has been considered in the
development of the Master Plan.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS;
Once the Master Plan is approved, there will be some interdepartmental involvement as the
recommendations are developed and implemented.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
The Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan will assist in defining appropriate resource
allocation and define the direction for the department’s areas of focus.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:

The Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan aligns with all 8 Pillars identified in the Town’s
Sustainability Visioning Report.

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
The Parks, Recreation and Culture Master Plan aligns with the following Strategic Priorities:

e Natural and Built Infrastructure
o Communications and Engagement
s Partnerships

SUMMARY:

It is recommended that Council approve the 2016 Parks, Recreation and Culture Maser Plan as
presented and direct staff to prepare an implementation schedule and proceed with
implementing the recommendations contained in the Master Plan.

| concur with the recommendation.

X))

Ruth Mz, City Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Parks, Recreation and Culture Master plan - final version

2016
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Town of Ladysmith
STAFF REPORT

L To: Ruth Malli, City Manager

ey From: Clayton Postings, Director of Parks, Recreation & Culture
B gl Date: May 30, 2016
Lapysaara L€ No:

Re:  CHLORINE SYSTEM CONVERSION PROJECT - FRANK JAMESON COMMUNITY CENTRE

RECOMMENDATION(S):
That Council receive the report for information.

PURPOSE:
To provide Council with an update regarding the chlorine system conversion project at Frank
Jameson Community Centre.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND:

The Town is currently switching over the disinfection system at the swimming pool, with the
objective of removing the gas chlorine system and replacing it with a Calcium Hypochlorite
(Chlorine) and Sodium Bisulphate (Acid) systems. This project is identified in the 2016 financial
plan. The project engineering consultant has developed the requirements for the new system; as
well the Local Health Authority has approved the design and authorized the conversion.

The Town is now retaining qualified contractors to complete the project. The project is scheduled
to be completed during the annual pool maintenance shutdown in August 2016.

Due to the requirement to change a number of values which will be used for the new system and
a requirement to upgrade the drains in the main pool which no longer meet industry standards,
the pool must be emptied. Repairs to the roof located over the swimming pool will also be
completed during the shutdown. As the walls are required to be opened up the work will need to
be completed from inside the pool area and from the roof.

In light of water conservation measures which may be implemented in August staff considered it
to be prudent to advise Council of the scheduled drainage of the swimming pool at this time.
Staff recognize the sensitivity of this issue and will work closely with the Public Works
Department and Corporate Services communications staff to ensure the process is managed
effectively.

Staff will continue to investigate methods of maintaining the pool while limiting the requirement
to drain it completely. Staff will only recommend emptying the pool when absolutely necessary.

SCOPE OF WORK:
The Town'’s facility maintenance staff is managing this project and will be working with various
consultants and contractors and other Town staff to complete the project.

Cowichan

COMMUNITY




ALTERNATIVES:

Given the list of projects scheduled for completion during the 2016 annual shutdown, there are
limited options to consider at this time as changes would significantly impact operations and
community use and add costs to the various projects.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS;
The project of replacing the gas chlorine disinfection system is included in the 2016-2020
financial plan.

Any changes to the established shut down and project schedule would impact the budget
negatively. The shut down is scheduled at the end of the summer as pool usage is lowest at this
time. Scheduling closures at any other time would have more of an impact on revenues. As well
if these projects were completed at separate times the costs associated would likely increase.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
N/A

CITIZEN/PUBLIC RELATIONS IMPLICATIONS:
The safety of the public and Town of Ladysmith employees is the rationale behind this change in
disinfection systems. The quality of the swimming pool water will not be impacted.

There may be some concern over emptying the swimming pool when the community will likely be
subjected to watering restrictions. Staff will investigate options to recycle the water which is
drained from the swimming pools.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL INVOLVEMENT/IMPLICATIONS:
Public Works will be consulted through the process.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
No additional resources for this initiative are required at this time.

ALIGNMENT WITH SUSTAINABILITY VISIONING REPORT:
5. Innovative Infrastructure
7. Healthy Community

ALIGNMENT WITH STRATEGIC PRIORITIES:
Natural and Built Infrastructure

SUMMARY:

Currently the swimming pool at the Frank Jameson Community Centre is disinfected by using
gas chlorine. Due to the risks associated with gas chlorine a new disinfection system - Calcium
Hypochlorite (Chlorine) and Sodium Bisulphate (Acid) -- is being installed in 2016. The transition
to the new system will greatly reduce the public safety risk associated with having gas chlorine
onsite and is in accordance with provincial and national standards.

| concur with the recommendation.
L AU
L

Ruth Malli, City Manager
2016
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Ladysmith

- ' ,
H Box 98, Ladysmith, BC, VoG 1A1
egtl‘vag N ~] ' Phone: (250)245-5888"

- ,
of * N : Fax: (259)245—0311 '

- www . ladysmithfol.com

RECEVER

Mayor Aaron Stone and Town Council
Town of Ladysmith
Dear Mayor

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Members of the Festival of Lights Society, we wouvld like to
present a proposal for the Traffic Circle and Fountain located at the North end of town at Symonds and
First Avenue.

This proposal is to have an LED Lighted, Animated Fountain Three Dimensional Structure; ( similar to the
ilustration attached ). Size to be determined at a later date for use during the Festival of Lights event.

Unlike the large Gift Box that we install during the Festival of Lights, this structure is transparént in
nature and would not obstruct the Anchor and Fountain that is presently there.

The cost of this installation would be fully covered by a generous donation from a sponsor that we have
in mind for this project.

We would appreciate the opportunity to discuss our proposal more fully with a small delegation of
representatives at your next Council Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2016.

Yours Sincerely,

Jorathan Zeile
President,

Ladysmith Festival of Lights

Lﬁst Thursday in N ovember ¢ It’sa Tl;nOn' o

Support from the Province of BC through the BC Gaming Commission -
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STZ’UMINUS FIRST NATION

e . HECEIVED
Town of Ladysmith 1 ey

PO Box 220 : R AN

410 Esplanade ) z—ké,’-:’ﬁvk\:&ﬂ&”‘ﬂi
Ladysmith, BC T

VIG 1A2

Attention: Mayor Aaron Stone
RE: Stz’'uminus Grad Fundraiser

We are writing your organization on behalf of our Stz’uminus First Nation Grads. We are proud to announce 19
Graduates this year.

Stz’uminus Grads are fundraising to offset costs for Annual Grad Events they have planned. Enclosed is copy of
Budget of Revenue and Expenses. Grads are working very hard: they have organized a bingo fundraiser, hot dog
sales they have raised $ 1741.00, and are still in need of an additional $ 2,128.40.

We are writing Town of Ladysmith to ask for funds to assist Stz’uminus Grads Fundraiser. Any contribution
towards their fundraising would be sincerely appreciated.

If you should require further information or clarification you can reach me by telephoning: 250-245-0275, or
email me at: josie.louie@stzuminus.com. Any contributions can be mailed to

StZ'uminus First Nation

12611 Trans-Canada Highway

Ladysmith BC

VI9G 1M5.

Sincerely,

/ N, o
‘“,‘ i)l ~)ZL (e ¥
/ |10sie Louie

Education Coordinator

StZ’uminus First Nation

..y.é‘éWe ar «WO,rk”?g as one
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518/2016 UBCM | Preliminary Program

Preliminary Program
The preliminary program below is tentative. Details will be confirmed closer to convention.

Monday, September 26

7:00 am - 6:00 pm
8:00 am - 5:30 pm
9:00 am - 4:30pm

1:30 pm - 4:30 pm
5:30 pm - 6:30 pm
7:00 pm - 8:00 pm

Tuesday, September 27

7:00 am - 6:00 pm
7:00 am - 8:30 am
7:30 am - 8:30 am
9:00 am - 12:00 pm
12:00 pm - 1:30 pm
1:45 pm - 2:45 pm
3:00 pm - 4:30 pm
4:00 pm - 5:30 pm
4:00 pm - 5:00 pm
- 5:30 pm - 6:30 pm
6:30 pm - 8:30 pm

Wednesday, September 28

7:00 am - 4:30 pm
7:00 am - 8:30 am
7:30 am - 8:15 am
8:30 am
9:00 am
9:20 am

9:25 am - 10:25 am

Registration

Study Tours

Study Sessions

BC Mayors' Caucus

Young Elected Officials Meet & Greet
Electoral Area Directors Meet & Greet

Registration

Continental Breakfast (Clinic attendees only)
Clinics

Forums

Forum Lunches

Plenary Session

Provincial Policy Sessions

Municipal Insurance Association of BC AGM
Municipal Finance Authority of BC Semi-Annual Meeting
Municipal Insurance Association of BC Reception
Welcome Reception

Registration

Continental Breakfast

Clinics

Convention Opening Session

Annual Meeting

First Report of the Nominating Committee for the Positions of Table Officers
Keynote Address .

Principal Policy Session: Resolutions

10:25 am - 11:45 am
11:45 am-11:55 am
11:55 am-12:00 pm

Address by the Leader of the Green Party
Nominations from the floor for Table Officer positions
Area Association Lunches (optional)

12:00 pm - 1:30 pm
1:45 pm - 2:00 pm
2:00 pm - 2:15 pm
2:15 pm - 2:45 pm

2:30 pm - 5:00 pm
3:00 pm - 4:15 pm
4:15 pm - 4:30 pm

Candidate speeches (as necessary)

Address by FCM President

Address by the Minister of Community, Sport and Cultural Development
Election of Table Officers (as necessary)

Provincial Cabinet Panels

Presentation of 2016 Climate & Energy Action Awards

BC Govemment Reception

Consulate-General of the Pﬁlis Republic of China in Vancouver

http://iwww.ubcm.ca/EN/main/convention/2016_convention/preliminary_program.html




5/18/2016

5:30 pm - 7:00 pm
6:30 pm - 8:00 pm

8:00 pm - 12:00 am

Thursday, September 29

7:00 am - 8:30 am

7:30 am - 8:15 am
8:00 am - 9:00 am
8:30 am - 8:35 am

8:35 am - 8:55 am
8:55 am - 11:35 am
11:35 am - 11:40 am
11:40 am - 12:00 pm
12:00 pm - 1:30 pm
2:30 pm - 4:30 pm
2:30 pm - 5:00 pm
6:30 pm

7:30 pm

Friday, September 30

7:00 am - 8:30 am
7:30 am - 8:30 am
8:00 am - 8:30 am
8:35 am - 10:45 am

10:45 am - 11:00am
11:00 am
12:00 pm

Follow Us On

o Twitter: @ubcm

UBCM | Preliminary Program
Réception
CUPE BC Reception

Continental Breakfast

Community Excellence Awards Breakfast Reception (invite only)
Clinics

Election of Table Officers continues (as necessary)

Second Report of the Nominating Committee for Executive positions
Address by Leader of the Official Opposition

Resolutions Session Continues

Nominations from the Floor for Executive Positions

Candidate Speeches (as necessary)

Delegates Lunch

Workshops

Election of Executive Positions (as necessary)

UBCM Reception

UBCM Banquet

Presentation of Long Service, Special Long Service and Life Member Awards

Continental Breakfast

Election for Executive Positions continues (as necessary)
Federal Address

Resolutions Session Continues

Consideration of:

Report on Resolutions Received after the Deadline
Remaining Section "B" Resolutions

Installation of President Elect

Address by the Premier

Adjourn

Copyright © 2012 UBCM. All rights reserved.

http:/Awww.ubcm.ca/EN/main/convention/2016_convention/preliminary, JJrograﬂ].RrﬁB
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Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw No. 1905 Page 5

b. notify the applicant of the date for reconsideration by regular mail sent to the
applicant’s address provided under Section 25.

Repeal

30.  Delegation Bylaw 2007, No. 1614 and any and all amendments are hereby repealed.

READ A FIRST TIME on the 16" day of May, 2016
READ A SECOND TIME on the 16" day of May, 2016
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of May, 2016
ADOPTED on the day of , 2016

Mayor (A. Stone)

Corporate Officer (S. Bowden)

178



179



180



TOWN OF LADYSMITH

BYLAW NO. 1905

A bylaw to provide for the appointment of Officers for the Town of Ladysmith and to prescribe

the powers, duties and responsibilities of such officers including the delegation of authority.

WHEREAS Council must, by bylaw, establish officers’ positions having responsibility under the

Community Charter, SBC 2006 c. 26;

AND WHEREAS Council may, by bylaw, delegate certain powers, duties and functions to its
officers and employees;

NOW, THEREFORE, in open meeting assembled, the Council of the Town of Ladysmith enacts
as follows:

Citation

1.

This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. 1905”.

Definitions

2. In this bylaw:
“Approving Officer”
S‘Bylaw”

“Department Director”

“Department Manager”

“Emergency”’

“Employee”

“Financial Plan”

“Panhandle Parcel”

“Special Event”

“Special Occasion License”

“Statutory Officer”

“Town”

“Zoning Bylaw”

Has the same meaning as “Approving Officer” in the
Town of Ladysmith Subdivision and Development
Servicing Bylaw 2013, No. 1834;

Means this Ladysmith Officers and Delegation of
Authority Bylaw 2016, No. xxxx;

As defined in Schedule ‘A’, attached to and forming
part of this bylaw;

As defined in Schedule ‘A’, attached to and forming
part of this bylaw;

Means a situation which may endanger the health
and/or safety of any Town employee, member of the
public or Town asset, as declared by Council;

Means a person employed by the Town of Ladysmith
other than a Statutory Officer;

Has the same meaning as “financial plan” as defined in
the Community Charter;

Has the same meaning as “Panhandle Parcel” in the
Town of Ladysmith Subdivision and Development
Bylaw 2013, No. 1834;

Means any organized event or gathering taking place
on Town-owned property for a limited or fixed

duration;

Means a special occasion license issued pursuant to the
Liguor Control and Licensing Act, RSBC 1996, c. 267;

Means a person appointed under Section 146 of the
Community Charter,

Means the Town of Ladysmith;

Means the “Town of Ladysmith Zoning Bylaw 2014,
No. 1860”.
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Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw No. 1905 Page 2

Establishment of Statutory Officer Positions

3.

10.

The person holding the position of Chief Administrative Officer is established as a
Statutory Officer of the Town.

The person holding the position of Director of Corporate Services is established as a
Statutory Officer of the Town.

The person holding the position of Director of Financial Services is established as a
Statutory Officer of the Town.

Nothing in this Bylaw shall prevent the appointment of the same person to two or more
offices or positions.

The selection and appointment of the Chief Administrative Officer shall be made by
Council.

The selection and appointment of all Department Directors is delegated to the Chief
Administrative Officer.

The selection and appointment of the. acting Chief Administrative Officer for a
consecutive period of less than one month is delegated to the Chief Administrative
Officer.

The selection and appointment of the acting Chief Administrative Officer for a
consecutive period of greater than one month shall be made by Council.

Power and Duties of the Chief Administrative Officer

11.

The Chief Administrative Officer has the following duties, powers and functions:
a. fulfilling the powers, duties and functions applicable to the Chief Administrative
Officer described in Section 147 of the Community Charter;

b. selecting and appointing the Statutory Officers and other Department Directors of

the Town;

¢. determining the compensation of non-union employees in accordance with the

corporate policies and budgets established by Council;

d. appointing, promoting, disciplining, and suspending any employee of the Town,
and terminating any employee of the Town other than Statutory Officers, subject
to any contract of employment or collective agreement in force;
subject to Council approval, negotiating all collective agreements;
implementing all Council approved policies and directives;
preparing and submitting such reports and recommendations as may be required
by Council;
retaining legal counsel on behalf of the Town;
assigning additional responsibilities to a Statutory Officer, including acting on
behalf of another Statutory Officer in his or her absence; and
j. designating an acting Chief Administrative Officer to act in his or her absence,

pursuant to section 9 hereof.

S E @

Powers and Duties of the Director of Corporate Services

12.

13.

The Director of Corporate Services has the powers, duties and functions described in
Section 148 of the Community Charter and other provisions applicable to the Corporate
Officer in the Community Charter or any other enactments.

Council hereby delegates to the Director of Corporate Services the following powers,
duties and functions:
a. approving applications for temporary private uses of municipal streets, including,
but not limited to, parades, walk-a-thons, fundraisers and races;
b. entering into leases of two years or less and the ability to set rental rates and
conditions associated with these leases;
c. approving the location and use of fireworks in accordance with Cowichan Valley
Regional District Bylaw No. 39 — Fireworks Sale and Discharge Regulation
Bylaw, 1970 and in consultation with the Fire Chief;
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Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw No. 1905 Page 3

d. the power to accept a restrictive covenant or amendment to a restrictive covenant
under section 56 of the Community Charter or section 219 of the Land Title Act;

e. the power to execute on behalf of the Town a discharge of a restrictive covenant
referred to in subsection (d) which is no longer required or is to be replaced;

f. the power to acquire a statutory right of way or easement or amendment to a
statutory right of way or easement on behalf of the Town in connection with the
operation of a sewer, water or drainage works, or for other purposes, such as trails
or pedestrian or vehicular access;

g. the power to execute a discharge of a statutory right of way or easement referred
to in subsection (f) which is no longer required by the Town or is to be replaced,

h. the power to enter into a lease or license of real property or a renewal or
amendment of a lease or license of real property necessary or convenient for the
operation and maintenance of the works or activities of the Town;

i. despite subsection (h), the delegation of authority under subsection (h) does not
include a lease or license of real property having a term, including all extensions
or rights of renewal, greater than 2 years.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Financial Services

14.

15.

The Director of Financial Services has powers, duties and function applicable to the
Financial Officer in accordance with Section 149 of the Community Charter and other
provisions applicable to the Financial Officer in the Community Charter or any other
enactments.

The Director of Financial Services is authorized to administer any system of discount,
interest, penalty, payment and refund of fees established by bylaw.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture

16.

17.

Council hereby delegates to the Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture the following
powers, duties and functions:
a. approving Special Events on land reserved, dedicated, or held for park purposes,
where such use is consistent with the Zoning Bylaw and any restrictions on title;
b. approving Special Occasion Licences pertaining to the aforementioned Special
Events obtained in accordance with the Liguor Control and Licensing Act, RSBC
1996, c. 26.

The Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture is hereby authorized to administer any
system of discount, interest, penalty, payment, and refund of fees associated with any
parks or recreation facility or program, pursuant to the Town of Ladysmith Community
Centre and Facilities Fees and Charges Bylaw 2015, No. 1884 in accordance with
applicable policies established from time to time by Council.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Infrastructure Services

18.

Council hereby delegates to the Director of Infrastructure Services the powers, duties and
functions with respect to approving the location, designation and control of on-street
parking and loading areas, in accordance with the conditions specified in Streets and
Traffic Bylaw No. 1309.

Powers and Duties of the Director of Development Services

19.

Council hereby delegates to the Director of Development Services the powers, duties and
functions to issue development permits for signage and facade improvements, and issue
amendments to development permits.

Powers and Duties of Approving Officer

20.

Council hereby delegates to the Approving Officer the powers, duties, and functions
under section 512(2) of the Local Government Act to approve the subdivision of land into
parcels, including Panhandle Parcels, that do not have a minimum highway frontage
greater than:
a. 10% of'the perimeter of the parcel that fronts the highway; and
b. the minimum highway frontage required by the Town of Ladysmith
Subdivision and Development Servicing Bylaw 13, No. 1834.

183



Officers and Delegation of Authority Bylaw No. 1905 Page 4

Delegation of Purchasing Authority

21. Council hereby delegates all of the powers, duties and functions of Council to authorize
the execution of contracts and purchases of goods and services on behalf of the Town to
the Department Director for the department for which the goods and services are to be
provided, as approved in the Financial Plan, and subject to the monetary limits set out in
Schedule ‘B’, and the Town’s Purchasing Policy as adopted by Council and amended
from time to time, and any applicable enactments or the New West Partnership Trade
Agreement.

Delegation to Persons Holding Position

22. Where this Bylaw delegates a power, duty or function to a Statutory Officer or other
Department Director, the delegation of the power, duty or function is to the person who
holds the position and to any person who is the deputy of that person, or other person
appointed to act in the place of that person.

No Delegation by a Delegate

23. For clarity, a person to whom a power, duty or function has been delegated under this
bylaw has no authority to further delegate to another person any power, duty or function
that has been delegated by this bylaw.

Reconsideration by Council

24, A decision of a delegate may be reconsidered by Council on submission of a written
request for reconsideration to the Director of Corporate Services, within thirty days after
the decision is delivered to or made available to the applicant.

25.  The request for reconsideration must include the following:
a. the applicant’s address for receiving correspondence related to the request for
reconsideration;
a copy of the written decision;
reasons why the applicant wishes the decision to be reconsidered by Council;
the decision which the applicant requests be made by Council;
reasons in support of the decision requested from Council; and
a copy of any documents which support the applicant’s request for
reconsideration by Council.

e oo o

26. At the reconsideration of a decision, the applicant is entitled to be heard by Council in
person or by a representative.

27.  The Council may, following completion of its reconsideration, do one or more of the
following:
a. confirm all or part of the delegate’s decision;
b. setaside all or part of the delegate’s decision;
c. amend the delegate’s decision or make a new decision.

28.  The Council may adjourn a reconsideration under this section.
Notice of Reconsideration
29. The Director of Corporate Services must, upon receiving an application for
reconsideration:
a. place the request for reconsideration on the agenda for a regular meeting of
Council to be held at least two weeks after the date on which the request for
reconsideration is delivered to the Director of Corporate Services;
b. notify the applicant of the date for reconsideration by regular mail sent to the
applicant’s address provided under Section 25.

Repeal

30. Delegation Bylaw 2007, No. 1614 and any and all amendments are hereby repealed.
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READ A FIRST TIME on the 16" day of May, 2016
READ A SECOND TIME on the 16" day of May, 2016
READ A THIRD TIME on the day of May, 2016
ADOPTED on the day of , 2016

Mayor (A. Stone)
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
OFFICERS AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BYLAW 2016, No. 1905

Schedule ‘A’

In this Bylaw:

“Department Director” Includes the following positions:

Director of Corporate Services

Director of Financial Services

Director of Development Services
Director of Infrastructure Services
Director of Parks, Recreation and Culture

“Department Manager” Includes the following positions:

Manager of Administration
Manager of Public Works
Manager of Accounting Services
Manager of Human Resources
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TOWN OF LADYSMITH
OFFICERS AND DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY BYLAW 2016, No. 1905
Schedule ‘B’

This schedule refers to the approvals required for various procurement levels. Other than in
emergencies, budget approval is required before procurement begins.

Value of Purchase or Contract ; Commitment Authority

Less than $2,999.99 Employees designated by Department
Directors.

$3,000.00 to $9,999.99 Department Managers.

$10,000.00 to $24,999.99 Department Directors.

$25,000.00 to $249,999.99 Approval of the Chief Administrative Officer
together-with the Approval of the Director of
Financial Services.

Greater than $250,000.00 Recommendation to award to be approved by
Town Council.
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